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AIDS
acquired immune deficiency 
syndrome

ANOVA
health institute supporting the 
public healthcare system through 
technical assistance

ART anti-retroviral treatment

BBBEE
broad based black economic 
empowerment

BCMM
buffalo City metropolitan 
municipality

BKCOB border kei Chamber of business

BRICS
britain russia india China south 
africa

COGTA
Cooperative governance and 
traditional affairs

COSATU
Congress of south african trade 
union

CPI Consumer price index

CSIR
Council for scientific & industrial 
research

DHET
department of higher education 
and training

DOSDSP
department of social 
development and special 
programmes

DPSA
department of public service and 
administration

EC eastern Cape

ECAC eastern Cape aids Council

ECDOH
eastern Cape department of 
health

ECNGOC eastern Cape ngo Coalition

ECPC
eastern Cape planning 
Commission

ECSECC
eastern Cape socio economic 
Consultative Council

FET Further education and training

GDP growth domestic product

GDS growth development summit

GVA gross value added

GIZ
gesellschaft für internationale 
Zusammenarbeit

HEUG high energy users group

HIV human immunodeficiency virus

HRD human resource development

ICT
information Communication
technology

IDP integrated development plan

IPAP industrial policy action plan

MERSETA
manufacturing, engineering and 
related services sector and 
training authority

MOU memorandum of understanding

MTC mayibuye transport Corporation

NAFCOC
national african Chamber of 
Commerce

NGO non-governmental organisation

MEC member of the executive Council

NMBBC
nelson mandela bay business 
Chamber

NMBM
nelson mandela bay 
municipality

NMMU
nelson mandela metropolitan 
university

ORTDM or tambo district municipality

OVC orphans and vulnerable Children

PERCCI
port elizabeth regional Chamber 
of Commerce and industry

PICC
presidential infrastructure 
Coordinating Commission

PFMA public Finance management act

PLWA people living with aids

PPPFA
preferential procurement policy 
Framework act

PSP provincial strategic plan

QLFS Quarterly labour Force survey

RDP
reconstruction development
programme

SA south africa

SACTWU
southern african Clothing &
textile workers union

SEZ special economic Zones

SIP strategic infrastructure project

SMME
small medium and micro
enterprise

TB tuberculosis

TSU technical support unit

TVET
technical vocational education 
and training

UCT university of Cape town

UNICEF
united nations international 
emergency Fund

VW volkswagen

WAD world aids day

WSU walter sisulu university

Abbreviations
and Acronyms
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The 2015/16 financial year has been another 
successful year for the entity in the quest to 
implement its five year Strategic Plan as approved 
by the Executive Authority and the Eastern Cape 
Legislature. The last financial year also marked 
the 20th Anniversary of ECSECC as a leader in 
development planning in the Eastern Cape.  

ECSECC’s focus in the year under review was to support 
execution planning and cascading of the Provincial Development 
Plan (PDP) to local government. Another major focus of ECSECC 
was the development of the provincial infrastructure plan in line 
with the PDP objectives and the National Infrastructure Plan.  

ECSECC, albeit operating in a highly constrained environment in 
terms of resources, executed the following initiatives in support 
of the mandate of the Office of the Premier: 

The entity’s governance structures, like the Board and its 
sub-committees, continued to be functional and held all their 
statutory meetings and adopted the Annual Performance Plan 
and the Annual Report as well as in year reports and policies. 
The Board also attended to its accounting responsibilities 
through attending the OTP Portfolio Committee meetings to 
present the APP and the Annual Report. 

ECSECC retained its clean audit opinion from the Auditor 
General for a fourth consecutive year. 

ECSECC successfully developed a Stakeholder Management 
and Communication Strategy as well as a Research and 
Knowledge Management Toolkit for the entity. 

The Department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform 
was supported in the review of the Agricultural Development 
Strategy for the Eastern Cape. To this end ECSECC facilitated 
a Strategic Planning Session of DRDAR. 

ECSECC multi-agency partnerships work culminated in an ICT 
in Agriculture mini-conference held in collaboration with WSU.

ECSECC co-ordinated the conceptualisation and development 
of the Conceptual and Governance Framework for Eastern Cape 
Operation Phakisa.

A successful Operation Phakisa Aquaculture Session was 
convened, bringing under one roof key stakeholders in the 
aquaculture sector, which include the following: Department 
of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF), Department 
of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform (DRDAR), 
Department of Economic Development, Environmental Affairs 
and Tourism (DEDEAT), Department of Water and Sanitation, 
East London IDZ, Coega, ECDC, Port of Port Elizabeth, Rhodes 
University, University of Fort Hare, Walter Sisulu University 
and coastal local municipalities in the province.

ECSECC participated in the preparation and facilitated a 
successful BCMM Growth and Development Strategy Summit. 
As part of the pre-summit activities ECSECC developed a 
review summary of the Draft BCMM GDS document, and 
facilitated engagement between BCMM political leadership 
and industry leaders, at which industry lifted their concerns for 
inclusion in the GDS document and programme.

Foreword by the
Chairperson

01
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The provincial Infrastructure Plan was 
completed and submitted to the OTP.

ECSECC provided development 
facilitation and content support in the 
compacting process of the three co-
ordinating departments (through the 
Local Government Task Team established 
by the Director General in the Office 
of the Premier) towards a cohesive 
integrated support to municipalities. To 
this end ECSECC developed a Local 
Government Co-ordination Framework.

The Amathole District Municipality, 
Chris Hani District Municipality, 
Buffalo City Municipality, KSD Local 
Municipality, Mbashe Local Municipality 
and O.R Tambo District Municipality 
were supported with content facilitation 
during their IDP strategy review 
sessions. The benefit of the support 
has been to ensure that the provincial 
socio-economic development agenda 
espoused in the PDP is infused in the 
plans of the Municipalities.

ECSECC hosted an HIV/AIDS stigma 
reduction programme was launched in 
O R Tambo District, and the focus was 
to enhance the capacity of Community 
Based entities to implement the stigma 
reduction programme. The stigma index 
research was completed and results 
were presented to the council, As part 
of the work of the Aids Council.

A summit on key populations was 
held in partnership with Walter 
Sisulu University and ANOVA Health 
Institute. A social ills summit focusing 
on teenage pregnancy was held 
in partnership with the provincial 
Department of Education. ECAC also 
facilitated a symposium to discuss 
the draft sexuality policy of the 
Department of Basic Education (DBE) 
and the outcome of this was policy 
recommendations to DBE.

A toolkit training on Know Your 
Epidemic was conducted in partnership 
with Buffalo City Metro AIDS council, 
Chris Hani District AIDS council and 
Sarah Baartman AIDS council.

ECAC Coordinated the hosting of the 
Provincial TB day and a plan to deal 
with TB challenges at Sarah Baartman 
District Municipality. A dialogue was 
held at Joza location as part of a build 
up towards TB day. TB screening 
was conducted in two schools in 
Grahamstown. This resulted in the 
subsequent visit by the Premier and the 
Chairperson of the AIDS council, MEC 
Dyantyi, to discuss a plan with the two 
schools to solve this problem.

ECSECC hosted a maritime skills 
development workshop which was 
attended by sector stakeholders 
provincially and by relevant national 
departments. The workshop agreed on 
key elements of the maritime skills plan 
for the sector and there is commitment 
to joint projects.  Co-ordination 
mechanisms were agreed upon and 
were recommended to the Executive 
Council.  The maritime skills plan was 
tabled to and approved by the Executive 
Council of the province.

A report on the assessment of quality of 
services for children within the Amathole 
and  Baartman Districts was produced.

In conclusion I would like to thank 
the Office of the Premier and Board 
members for their commitment to 
the entity, and would also like to 
thank management for implementing 
our strategies and decisions.  I am 
confident that the strides and the 
contribution that the entity is making 
will have a discernible development 
impact in the province. 

 

MEC M QHOBOSHIyANE
Chairperson of the Board
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general financial review 
of eCseCC 

ECSECC’S financial position is stable. As 
a schedule 3C Entity, the government 
guarantees both operational and employee 
costs. It is however important to note that 
with the government facing financial strain, 
austerity measures have been introduced 
by the entity. ECSECC management 
advocates a culture of effective, efficient 
and economical spending. 

spending trends of 
eCseCC
 
ECSECC has done well in terms of 
spending in the 2015/16 financial year. 
Of the total revenue received of R44 990 
000, ECSECC has spent R41 017 000 
(excluding commitments) which amounts 
to 91% of the allocation. 

requests for roll over 
of funds
A roll over application has been lodged 
with the Provincial Treasury. ECSECC has 
requested to roll over its full cash balance 
as at 31 March 2016 which amounts to 
R4 711 988. 

supply chain management
ECSECC prides itself with compliant 
supply chain management systems, 
processes and practices. There have been 
no significant issues identified by our 
assurance providers. This is as a result of 
a strong system of internal controls and 
a culture of accountability and integrity 
advocated by the Entity. ECSECC always 
follows due process and hence there have 
been no unsolicited bid proposals during 
this financial period.

previous year’s findings
Matters raised by the Office of the 
Auditor General in the previous period 
were not control or compliance matters 
but housekeeping matters and these have 
been fully addressed.

MR ANDREW MURRAy
Chief Executive Officer

Overview
Chief Executive

Officer

Statement of
Responsibility
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To the best of my knowledge and 
belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed 
in the annual report are consistent 
with the annual financial statements 
audited by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate 
and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared 
in accordance with the guidelines 
on the annual report as issued by 
National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements 
have been prepared in accordance 
with the General Recognised 
Accounting Practices. The accounting 
authority is responsible for the 
preparation of the annual financial 
statements and for the judgements 
made in this information.  

The accounting authority is responsible 
for establishing, and implementing a 
system of internal control designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as 
to the integrity and reliability of the 
performance information, the human 
resources information and the annual 
financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to 
express an independent opinion on the 
annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report 
fairly reflects the operations, the 
performance information, the human 
resources information and the financial 
affairs of the public entity for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully 

and confirmation of accuracy for the Annual Report

Statement of
Responsibility

03

MR ANDREW MURRAy
Chief Executive Officer

MEC M QHOBOSHIyANE
Chairperson of the Board
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Vision 
A poverty free Eastern 
Cape where everyone 
benefits equitably from 
the economy and realises 
their human potential.

Mission
To be a multi-stakeholder 
centre of excellence in 
applied policy research, 
development planning 
and facilitation.

Values and Principles
ECSECC continues to be driven by a 
combination of values that obtain from the 
liberation struggle in our country together 
with that of internationally competitive, 
“cutting-edge” socio-economic policy 
research institutes. Core values and 
principles include:

Strategic
Overview

04

Non racialism
Non Sexism
Human Dignity
Democracy
Accountability
Transparency
Professionalism

Innovation
Organisational Learning
Constructive Criticism, 
and
Creating the conditions 
for people to realise their 
full human potential.
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ECSECC’s legislative mandate is derived 
from its status as a Schedule 3C Public 
Entity (in terms of the Public Finance 
Management Act), as well as from its 
legal status as a Section 21 Company. 

In terms of its Section 21 status, ECSECC’s 
Memorandum and Articles of Association describe 
the main business of the company as being “To play 
a consultative and advisory role (primarily socially and 
economically) to the Eastern Cape Government”.  
The Memorandum and Articles of Association outline 
the proceedings for Annual General Meetings, 
through which the Board of Directors are elected.” 

ECSECC’s founding document describes its 
functional mandate as that of fostering “a new 
relationship between the key stakeholders of 
the province”. The labour movement, organised 
business, developmental non-governmental 
organisations and the Government will be the key 
components of the Council. Through this body 
the parties will strive to jointly promote the goals 
of economic growth and increased participation 
in decision-making on the implementation of the 
Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP).

The principal objective of the Council will be to 
advise and assist the provincial Government to 
achieve an integrated development strategy for 
the province and its constituent regions, in order to 
address the economic development of the province 
in terms of the RDP, and in particular the needs 
of the deprived communities and underdeveloped 
areas. The Council will achieve this through a 
planning and development process which can give 
effect to both strategy and operational issues.”

more specifically, the founding 
document sets out the 
following six goals for eCseCC: 

Advise and assist provincial government achieve 
an integrated development strategy for the 
province and its constituent regions, in order 
to address the economic development of the 
province - particularly the needs of deprived 
communities and underdeveloped areas;

Facilitate and coordinate the implementation 
of development programmes between all key 
stakeholders in the Province of the Eastern 
Cape;

Facilitate development by providing an avenue 
for formal inputs into the policy-making process 
of government;

Support government in advancing efficient 
service delivery;

Empower communities and the grassroots 
structures of civil society to engage in 
development; and

Assist the provincial government in developing 
policies and strategies that will facilitate the 
growth of the provincial economy.

ECSECC
Mandate

05
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Organisational
Structure 06

Programme 1 
FINANCE AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES

ANDREW MuRRAy
Chief Executive Officer
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Programme 1B 
STRATEGy, OPERATIONS AND 
KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT

Programme 3 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
GOVERNANCE

Programme 4 
STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE

Programme 5 
HRD

Programme 6 
HIV/AIDS

VUyISA DAyILE 
HIV/AIDS 
Programme 
Manager

SIV HELEN HESjEDAL 
Manager: 
Strategy and 
Knowledge 
Management

NOMSA MBOVANI-NABO 
Corporate Affairs 
Manager

ANDISA ZINjA Chief 
Financial Officer

LUTHANDO jACK
Chief Operations 
Officer

MS SIVE KAMTE
Quality Development 
Officer

NATASHA AUGUST 
Programme 
Secretary

VUyOLWETHU NKOHLA 
Statistical 
Economist

BAPHELELE MHLABA
Strategic Governance Support 
Programme Manager

NOPHIWE LUDIDI  
PTCS Manager

BULELWA LUBELWANA 
GIS Specialist

NOTHANDO SHENxANE 
HR Officer

MS jANICE EWERS 
Finance Manager

NOMABHELE MANDABA 
Information and Knowledge 
Management Coordinator

ZUZEKA KWANGA
Admin Assistant

NOKUZOLA MSHUMPELA 
Supply Chain Manager

LUSANDA BANTWINI  
Policy Researcher

TEBOHO QHOLOSHA  
Sector Development 
Specialist

VACANT
Development Planning 
Specialist

CHRIS MOTSILILI 
Governmental Coordinating and 
Planning Specialist

NOMONDE 
HLATSHANENI 
IMHR 
Manager

KAMBALE KAVESE  
Senior Economist

LITHEMBA NTLOKONKULU  
IT Officer

VELISWA TIMA 
Accounts Officer

NOSANGO KANDILE 
General Assistant

ESETHU MAGWENTSHU 
Information and Knowledge 
Management Assistant

NOMPUMELELO SITHOLE 
Receptionist

SIBONGILE NDUBAZA
Procurement Officer

NTOMBEBANDLA MTATI 
General Assistant

NOZUKO NKUNDLA
Office Assistant

DARyL BRAAM 
Education Specialist

LIBHONGO NTLOKONKULU
Policy Researcher

DR PELISA DANA 
HIV Senior 
Researcher

NOyISE SEMANE 
Programme Secretary

LUNGISWA DUBULA 
Programme 
Secretary

ZEODOR ARENDS 
M&E 
Specialist

Programme 2 
ECONOMIC GOVERNANCE

LUVUyO MOSANA
Economic Governance 
Programme/HRD 
Manager

MICHAEL LEWIS 
Development 
Economist

CINGASHE NOGAyA 
LED Project
Manager

RUSSELL GRINKER 
Development 
Facilitation Specialist

VIWE BOOI 
Programme 
Secretary

LULAME MPAHLA 
Youth 
Coordinator

OLWETU MAFUTHA 
Communications 
Expert

BULELWA MHLONTLO 
Programme 
Secretary

VAcANt
Innovation & Research Specialist

Nozuko SoMNiSo
Executive Secretary and Chief Risk Officer
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The AGSA currently performs the 
necessary audit procedures on the 
performance information to provide 
reasonable assurance in the form of an 
audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on 
the performance against predetermined 
objectives is included in the report to 
management, with material findings 
being reported under the Predetermined 
Objectives heading in the Report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements section 
of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 82 to 83 of the Auditor’s 
Report, published as Financial Information.

2.1 performance delivery environment

South African economic development and 
post-recession performance

South Africa remains a dual economy with one of the 
highest inequality rates in the world, perpetuating poverty, 
inequality and exclusion. This situation is likely to be 
aggravated by the current fragile economy, low growth 
rate, and tight fiscal conditions. In 2015 South Africa’s 
growth continued to slow down, recording only 1.3%, the 
weakest performance since the global financial crisis. 

Low economic growth, high unemployment rate, 
deindustrialisation and increasing cost of living are 
amongst the post-recession challenges that the country 
needs to address. According to the South African Reserve 
Bank, the pace of increase in the real gross domestic 
product decreased to 1.3% in 2015, a disappointing 
performance compared to 5.4% attained prior the 
recession in 2007. The poor performance of the South 
African economy in 2015 was mainly attributed to a 
contraction in the primary and secondary sectors’ real 
outputs, especially in most value adding sectors.

Auditor’s Report
Predetermined

Objectives

Situational
Analysis

01

02
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Should high demand for energy 
persist, this will push the producer 
price up and erode household 
incomes. The price of goods 
produced will escalate and the 
consumers will pay high prices. This 
negatively affects the affordability of 
poor people who are already battling 
to meet their basic needs.

During the last quarter of 2015, 
two provinces went technically into 
recession, namely Mpumalanga 

and Northern Cape. Mpumalanga’s 
economy declined for three 
consecutive quarters at -4.0% in 
2Q2015; -3.2% in 3Q2015 and -1.6% 
in 4Q2015. Northern Cape’s economy 
also declined for three consecutive 
quarters at -4.4% in 2Q2015; -4.6% in 
3Q2015 and -2.1% in 4Q2015. One of 
the reasons for negative GDP growth 
in these two provinces is the decline 
in the primary sector that accounts for 
more than 25% of GVA. 

Looking at a long-term economic 
performance of the province, two 
questions emerge. What are the top 
5 sectors that boosted the Eastern 
Cape economic performance and 
what are the marginally performing 
sectors?  An index for economic 
sector performance for the Eastern 
Cape (from 1995 to 2015) will help us 
to address these questions. 

Figure 1: Performance and trends of the South African economy: 
(real gDP growth rate: 196 – 2015)
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Turning to the Eastern Cape economy, 
most indicators are signalling that 
growth in the province is unsustainable 
and fragile. The Eastern Cape real 
GDP-R at market prices declined from 
5.3% in 2007 to 1.0% in 2015. This 
decline was mainly driven by poor 
performance in productive sectors. 
After the global recession, the Eastern 
Cape economy peaked at 3.6% 
growth in 2011 but has declined since 
then. For the past three years, the 
Eastern Cape economy has averaged 
around one percent. This poor and 
persisting slowdown in the Eastern 
Cape economy was aggravated by 
two factors, namely, a high cost 
of living making the Eastern Cape 
headline inflation rate among the 
highest in country as well as a high 
unemployment rate. The energy sector 
is also experiencing a challenge of high 
demand for electricity that the country 
is unable to supply. 

Figure 2: eastern Cape economic sector growth index (1995 = 100): Top 5 sectors that performed well

Source: Statistics South Africa, 2016, 
Own calculations
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Figure 4: eastern Cape sectoral contribution to gVA and % share: 2015

Figure 3: economic sector growth index (1995 = 100):  Bottom 5 sectors that performed marginally in the eastern Cape

Source: Statistics South Africa, 2016, 
Own calculations

Source: Statistics South Africa
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A long-run perspective of economic sector performance 
in the Eastern Cape reveals that gross value added in 
construction and transport has more than doubled in real 
terms. Between 1995 and 2015, the construction sector 
improved by 178 index points and transport by 108 index 
points. This demonstrates the effort that has been made 
to improve infrastructure in the province.

The index shows that the agriculture sectors’ real GVA 
improved the least from 100 in 1995 to 141 in 2014. This 
is a 41 index point improvement in 20 years compared to 
178 index point improvement in construction. This is not 
good news as agriculture is regarded a priority sector in 
the province. To meet the Sustainable Development Goals 
of “ending poverty in all its forms everywhere and ending 
hunger, achieve food security and improved nutrition and 
promote sustainable agriculture”, the agriculture sector 
needs to be prioritised and to grow. 

The analysis of sectoral contribution to GVA and their 
respective percentage growth rate in the Eastern Cape 
confirms the insignificance and lack of growth of the 
agriculture sector.

The graph below shows four sectors that contribute less 
than 5% to the Eastern Cape Economy:

In 2015, Gross Value Added  (GVA) generated by 
the General Government sector, which also includes 
community services combined with trade sector and 
finance sector, all together accounted for almost 80% of 
total Gross Domestic Product (GDP-R) of the province. 
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Deindustrialisation: a major 
concern to EC policy makers 

Deindustrialisation is a process 
of social and economic change 
caused by the removal or reduction 
of industrial capacity or activity in a 
country or region, especially heavy 
industry or manufacturing industry. It 
can be as a result of a shift from the 
manufacturing sector to the service 
sector, or a straightforward decline 
in the output of manufactured goods 
in the manufacturing sector. Certain 

economists regard deindustrialisation 
as a positive process, if it is as a 
result of the maturity of the economy. 
This is not the case for South Africa 
or the Eastern Cape. The province 
associates deindustrialisation with 
negative factors of sluggish economic 
performance in terms of total output 
and total employment. 

The manufacturing sector’s 
contribution to GDP-R declined from 
13.8% in 2000 to 12.4% in 2015. 
Similarly, growth in the manufacturing 
sector declined from 13.1% in 2000 

to 4.4% in 2010 and it attained 0.1% 
growth in 2015.  This points towards 
the high levels of deindustrialisation 
that have occurred in the province 
over the past two decades.

The Table below shows the top three 
sectors that contribute most to the 
Eastern Cape economy, namely 
government, finance and trade. It 
also shows the bottom three sectors 
(mining, electricity and agriculture) 
which contribute in total less than 3% 
to the Eastern Cape GDP. 

TABle 1: Sectors Contribution to the eastern Cape DgP-r (1995 – 2015)

 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015
Agriculture 1.8% 1.5% 1.2% 1.5% 1.5%
Mining 0.5% 0.4% 0.4% 0.3% 0.3%
Manufacturing 13.6% 13.8% 13.6% 12.9% 12.4%
Electricity 1.6% 1.7% 1.4% 1.2% 1.1%
Construction 2.1% 2.0% 2.8% 3.6% 3.5%

Trade 18.5% 19.8% 18.2% 17.7% 17.8%
Transport 6.1% 7.0% 7.8% 7.8% 7.8%
Finance 15.4% 14.6% 17.6% 17.8% 18.4%
Community Services 6.6% 7.0% 7.0% 6.8% 6.8%
General government 23.9% 22.8% 20.8% 21.2% 20.6%

Total industries 90.0% 90.6% 90.7% 90.8% 90.3%
Taxes & Subsidies 10.0% 9.4% 9.3% 9.2% 9.7%
gDPr 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

 
Source: Statistics South Africa, 2016
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Post-recession unemployment trends in the Eastern Cape 

In this section we are looking at 
post-recession unemployment 
trends (2008 - 2016) using 
both the official definition 
and the expanded definition. 
The Quarterly Labour Force 
Survey (QLFS) released by 
Statistics South Africa shows 
that unemployment rate in the 
Eastern Cape (using the official 
or strict definition) fluctuated 
in the range of 24% and 31% 
compared to 23% and 26% for 
the country as a whole. The 
highest unemployment gap (5.9 
percentage point gap) occurred 
in the 3rd quarter of 2013 when 
the EC unemployment rate 
reached 30.5% and that of the 
country was 24.1%.

Figure 5: Post-recession unemployment trends (official definition) in SA and eC, 
1Q2008-2Q2015

Source: Statistics SA - QLFS, 2016
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The Table below shows how economic sectors have grown over the years. In 2015, two sectors declined: 
agriculture (-6.1%) and energy (-0.4%). Lack of growth in the energy sector might contribute to the slowdown of the 
industrialisation process.

TABle 2: Sector’s growth rate in the eastern Cape economy (1996 – 2015)

 1996 2000 2005 2010 2015
Agriculture, forestry and fishing -1.7 -5.6 -15.0 1.6 -6.1

Mining and quarrying 2.2 -11.8 -6.3 6.2 4.2

Manufacturing -1.5 13.1 4.6 4.4 0.1

Electricity and water 9.0 4.3 4.3 0.8 -0.4

Construction 4.4 -0.5 8.1 -1.3 2.1

Wholesale & retail trade; hotels & restaurants 3.7 6.7 5.5 4.1 0.9

Transport  and communication 6.9 5.2 6.0 1.3 1.1

Finance, real estate and business services 6.0 -1.2 7.0 0.6 2.0

Community, social and other personal services 2.9 4.8 3.2 0.4 1.1

General government services 3.8 2.7 4.7 2.9 0.7

All industries at basic prices 3.5 4.4 5.0 2.3 0.9
Taxes less subsidies on products 3.7 2.0 5.2 2.7 1.6
gDPr at market prices 3.5 4.2 5.0 2.4 1.0

Source: Statistics South Africa, 2016



2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report    19

Using the expanded 
definition, post-recession 
unemployment rate in the 
Eastern Cape fluctuated in 
the range of 35% and 46%. 
Unemployment disparities 
also exist between youth 
and adults, males and 
females. The rates are much 
higher amongst the youth 
and females than they are 
amongst their adult and male 
counterparts. 

The consumer price index 
(CPI) is the main variable used 
to measure inflation. The CPI 
measures the changes in 
prices of a basket of goods 
and services purchased 
by a representative set of 
households. The South 
African reserve bank (SARB) 
has set an inflation target that 
ranges between 3% and 6% 
per annum. 

Figure 6: Post-recession unemployment trends (expanded definition) 
in SA and eC, 1Q2008-2Q2015

Source: Statistics SA - QLFS, 2016
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Figure 7: CPi for South Africa and the eastern Cape: 31/03/2010 - 31/03/2016

Source: Statistics SA - QLFS, 2016
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CPI - inflation reveals high cost of living in the Eastern Cape
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In March 2016, the Eastern Cape inflation rate 
decreased by 0.4 of a percentage point to 7.1% 
year-on-year (y/y). This is down from 7.5% y/y in 
February 2016. For three consecutive months, the 
Eastern Cape’s inflation rate remained higher than 
the South African Reserve Bank upper limit of 6.0%. 
The Eastern Cape inflation rate for March 2016 (7.1%) 
was above the South African inflation rate (6.6% y/y) 
and the national headline inflation rate (6.3% y/y). This 
implies that the cost of living in the Eastern Cape is 
higher than that of the country as a whole, eroding 
the disposable income of households and the level of 
saving that is already low in the province.

Consumer prices in South Africa decreased to 6.6% 
y/y in March 2016, down from 7.0% in February 2016. 
Figures came in line with market expectations, as a 
decline in petrol cost offset higher food inflation.

Transport prices increased at a much slower rate of 
4.5%, following an 8.7% increase in February. This 
was mainly due to the petrol price (up only 3.8% y/y 
compared to an increase of 20.7% y/y in February). 

Prices of housing and utilities slowed (up only 6.4% 
y/y compared to 6.6% y/y in February), miscellaneous 
goods and services (up 6.7% from 6.8% in February) 
and education (up 4.6% from 9.3% in February) In 
contrast, cost of food and non-alcoholic beverages ac-
celerated (up 9.5% from 7.0% in February). 

Implications for Development Planning

Planning during periods of economic uncertainty is very 
different from planning during periods of economic 
stability. Careful assessment must consequently be made 
of the inherent opportunities and risks associated with the 
current conjuncture, including: 

The fact that growing policy space exists to break 
with orthodox development models. Relationships 
between the state and markets are being revisited, 
with renewed emphasis on active industrial policy and 
new forms of state support for inclusive economic 
development; 

The increased presence in the global policy landscape 
of issues of sustainability, food security, and how to 
more effectively delink growth and fossil fuel depen-
dency;

The adoption by the United Nations of the 2030 
Agenda for Sustainable Development - Transforming 
our World underpinned by  seventeen Sustainable 
Development Goals ( SDGs). The seventeen SDGs 
cover the following areas: no poverty; zero hunger;  
good health and well-being;  quality education;  
gender equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable 
and clean energy; decent work and economic growth; 
industry; innovation and infrastructure; reduced 
inequalities; sustainable cities and communities; 
responsible consumption and production;  climate 
action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice 
and strong institutions; and partnerships for the goals. 
The SDGs articulate very well with the NDP and the 
PDP as well as the Africa’s Agenda 2063;

The increased acknowledgment of the role that 
knowledge institutions such as the universities and 
science parks have played in driving growth and 
innovation (the so-called “triple helix” of industry, 
universities and government) in both established and 
emerging economies;

The evident shift in the relative balance of economic 
power, over the recent past, away from the US, 
Europe and Japan, to the emerging economies of 
China, India, Vietnam, Indonesia, among others; 
the emergence of fast-growing African economies 
(Ghana, Nigeria, Mozambique, Zambia, Ethiopia, 
Tanzania etc.); as well as the emergence of BRICS as 
a powerful multilateral body and trade alliance;

The sluggish growth prospects for South Africa, 
which are set to continue for the next few years 
(linked in part to the country’s over-reliance on raw 
materials, metals and minerals exports, financial 
inflows, and continued ties to the Eurozone). The 
continued underperformance of the SA economy 
has exacerbated already existing trends of 
deindustrialisation, and consequently increased 
levels of poverty and unemployment, while at the 
same time reducing state revenue. This has rapidly 
increased the budget deficit, eroded the financial 
resource base of the state and increased the cost of 
debt. This occurs precisely at a time when counter-
cyclical infrastructure investment is needed, higher 
risk direct investment to stimulate the economy, as 
well as increased social protection spend. There is a 
growing imperative to optimise efficiency and value 
for money by state structures, and reduced scope for 
so-called “vanity projects”. Resource allocation must 
increasingly be tied to policy priorities and be based on 
a cost-benefit analysis.
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Provincial Planning and 
Governance

In light of these emerging national 
development opportunities, it is vital 
that the province becomes more 
coherent and unified around the 
development agenda it seeks to 
pursue.  This must include strong 
policy co-ordination and leadership at 
provincial level (located in the Office of 
the Premier), and the bedding down of 
the often complex and unwieldy multi-
level governance arrangements that 
sometimes hamstring development. 

It is important that we draw lessons 
from the PGDP which was replaced 
by the PDP. The PGDP and many 
of its sector strategies, plans, and 
programmes were subject to “stop-
start” discontinuities associated 
with changes in the political and 
administrative leadership of Provincial 
Government. The stakeholder 
compacts, which characterised the 
development of the PGDP and the 
District GDSs, were not sustained and 
a system of mutual accountability was 
not maintained. Also importantly, the 
necessary implementation support 
was not provided (programming, 
resource allocation, capacity 
development, monitoring, evaluation 
etc.). Competing prioritisation 
frameworks (such as the Medium 
Term Strategic Framework) also 
worked to undermine the authority of 
the PGDP over time as the overarching 
strategic framework around which 
all government and stakeholder 
development actions in the province 
should be organised and mobilised.    

The extent to which we can sustain 
an appetite for plan-led development 
and evidence-based planning over the 
long term remains a challenge. These 
assume high levels of strategic and 
organisational coherence both within 
and outside the state, and tight active 
compacts between the state and 
strategic stakeholders. ECSECC needs 
to work more closely with the OTP to 
ensure a stronger integrating centre of 

Government in the province. 
As we strengthen the centre of 
Government, we also need to 
assemble new compacts through 
which the various inter-governmental 
organs of state and other 
stakeholders can hold each other 
mutually accountable for agreed-upon 
outcomes. This suggests a more 
active model of compact between 
the state and relevant communities 
of development practice anchored 
in a common vision for social and 
economic justice. 

The vision 2030 and provincial 
development plan (PDP) serve 
as a platform for mobilisation of 
stakeholders behind a common vision. 
The PDP offers a fresh opportunity 
for the province to unite and drive a 
common and inclusive agenda.  This 
therefore calls for the popularisation 
of the PDP, and cascading of the PDP 
and its programming into concrete 
programmes. ECSECC will continue 
to work with the OTP in cascading 
the PDP and in ensuring that other 
development plans articulate with the 
PDP going forward. 

2.2 organisational 
environment
ECSECC was established in 1995 
and in 2015 celebrated 20 years of 
leading development planning and 
facilitation in the province.  The entity 
has stayed true to its mandate, vision 
and mission in the last 20 years while 
growing and developing a broad range 
of capabilities. 

The entity recognises that operating 
in a changing world requires 
continuous revisiting of its operating 
assumptions within the broad context 
of building a capable and responsive 
entity. ECSECC thus needs to build 
on the achievements of the last 20 
years whilst critically reflecting on the 
challenges of today and tomorrow 
with a view to positioning itself to 
tackling these challenges through 
continuous renewal of its capabilities.

In the period under review, the 
entity held a series of strategic 
planning sessions to review its 
performance and implementation of 
the five year Strategic Plan. These 
planning sessions continually review 
ECSECC’s place in the development 
planning terrain in the Eastern Cape 
and South Africa. Regular reviews 
help ensure that ECSECC sets 
appropriate priorities for the year. 
The shareholder of ECSECC, the 
OTP, is always invited by the entity 
with a view to ensuring alignment of 
expectations and priorities.  

The financial year 2015-2016 saw the 
second year of the implementation of 
the Strategic Plan of ECSECC with its 
service excellence model and a new 
organisational structure that is aligned 
to the new strategy. All of these 
have been implemented through the 
Annual Performance Plan and the 
Annual Operational Plan. The entity 
continues to put in place mechanisms 
to improve organisational effectives, 
programme alignment, project 
management and the building of 
synergies between programmes. 
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ECSECC continued to provide a strategic 
crossing point with a range of public and private 
institutions and organisations in the development 
space to ensure alignment of policy, strategy 
and implementation. ECSECC, in the recent 
past, has developed capabilities not only for 
planning but for programme conceptualisation, 
execution planning, implementation facilitation 
and oversight.  

ECSECC continues to play an even greater role 
in strategic compacting for the implementation 
of the new provincial development plan through 
supporting implementation through project 
development and planning. As an enabler 
and facilitator for development planning and 
partnerships, ECSECC will bring to bear its 
capabilities not only in the sphere of strategy 
development but also on practical programmes 
and projects.
 
ECSECC continues to strengthen its knowledge 
management capacity and is thus providing 
evidence based policy and strategic advice to the 
provincial government and its stakeholders.  

2.3 key policy developments and 
legislative changes
There were no major policy developments and legislative 
changes in the period under review. It is important to report 
though that in the 2016/17 financial year, ECSECC will be 
engaged in the development of a white paper on ECSECC 
and contribute to the development of an enabling Act 
(legislation) for ECSECC.

2.4 strategic outcome oriented goals
In the 2015/16 financial year ECSECC operated with four 
interrelated five-year strategic goals as contained in its 
Strategic Plan, which are:

To facilitate effective and efficient administration, 
governance and knowledge management.

To support development policy, strategy and planning in 
the Eastern Cape Province.

To be a socio-economic knowledge hub for the Eastern 
Cape Province.

To create platforms for multi-stakeholder participation and 
partnerships.
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3.1 overall organisational performance

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

ProgrAmme 1: operations, Finance, Corporate Services and Knowledge management

Strategic objective 1.1: 
An effective and 
efficient and 
development oriented  
governance and 
management

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

44 42 43 1 There was under-achievement and over-
achievement:

A special Audit Committee meeting was 
convened to approve the Audit Plan.

A special F&A meeting was called to 
consider the revised budget.

Resignation of 3 employees was 
unexpected and this led to the non-
achievement of less than 5% employee 
turn-over.

Strategic objective 1.2:
Effective and efficient 
operations and 
knowledge management  

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

25 20 24 4 More publications came through the pipeline 
due to emphasis on the implementation of 
the ECSECC Excellence Model.

ProgrAmme 2: economic governance

Strategic objective 2.1:
to support economic 
development policy, 
strategy and planning 
in the Eastern cape 
province 

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

18 16 16 There was an under-achievement and over-
achievement:

The work on the Agricultural Strategy was 
not completed and will be finalised in the 
2016/17 Financial Year.

There was one additional dialogue that 
was prioritised in order to give more focus 
on agricultural development.

Organisational
Performance 03
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ProgrAmme 3: infrastructure governance

Strategic objective 3.1: 
Develop and drive a common 
provincial infrastructure 
agenda to support socio-
economic development

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from Planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

23 20 20

 

ProgrAmme 4: Strategic governance Support

Strategic objective 4.1: Sup-
port the building of a capable 
developmental state 

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from Planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 2015/2016

comment on 
Deviations

16 15 16 1 Additional request from a  
municipality

ProgrAmme 5: Human resource Development

Strategic objective 5.1:  An 
effective and efficient and 
development oriented  gover-
nance and management

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from Planned 
target to Actual

Achievement for 2015/2016

comment on 
Deviations

9 10 10

ProgrAmme 6: HiV/AiDS

Strategic objective 6.1: Re-
duce the rate of new HiV and 
tB infections using combina-
tion prevention methods and 
a multi-sectorial approach 

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from Planned 
target to Actual

Achievement for 2015/2016

comment on 
Deviations

16 18 12 6 Had to discontinue tracking 
the migration of eligible clients 
to FDC as the EC DoH has 
migrated all eligible clients 

The function of mounting 
intervention programmes to 
deal with adverse effects of  
HIV treatment was taken over 
by the EC DoH

Strategic objective 6.2:
Protect human rights, end 
all unlawful discrimination 
and inequality among people 
affected by HiV

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from Planned 
target to Actual

Achievement for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

5 6 6

Strategic objective 6.3: Func-
tionality of AiDS councils in 
the Eastern cape

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from Planned 
target to Actual

Achievement for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

25 20 20



2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report    25

Overall Budget Performance
reVenue 2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual Revenue (over)/ under 
Revenue Budget Actual Revenue (over)/ under 

Revenue

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

OTP grant 48,908 48,908 - 43,736 43,736 -

GIZ grant - 63 (63)

NMBMM - 880 (880)

Other income 160 416 (256) 165 300 (135)

ToTAl 49,068 49,324 (256) 43,901 44,979 (1,078)

Note:  Interest received (included under other income) on deposits were under budgeted for both years due to expected returns from the bank being lower than actual.  
Funding was received from Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality for work performed in 2016 which was not originally budgeted for.

exPenDiTure 2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure Budget Actual 

Expenditure
(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 16,967 17,096 (129) 9,714 11,676 (1,962)

COE 31,601 30,140 1,461 31,987 30,746 1,241

Capital 500 849 (349) 2,200 550 1,650

ToTAl 49,068 48,085 983 43,901 42,972 929

Note:  Expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude com-
mitments against budget until they are expensed.  The budget figures are based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting 
methods.  Refer to programme budget explanations for more detail.



the aim of this programme is to shift the economic 
development path of the Eastern cape so that poverty 

is progressively reduced and EcSEcc’s vision is 
achieved. the peripheral nature of our economy and its 

relative under-performance are well understood. the 
programme seeks to set out clear priorities over the 

planning period, and what can realistically be achieved 
to improve economic development in the province.

eCseCC operates the following programme structure:

Programme

1 Operations, Finance, 
Corporate Services and
Knowledge Management

PAGE 28

Programme

2 Economic Governance

PAGE 32

Programme

3 Infrastructure Governance

PAGE 36

this programme aims to contribute to 
the attainment of goal number 1 and 2 
in the five-year strategy. the purpose of 
the programme is the development and 
implementation of effective and efficient 
EcSEcc management and governance 
systems and procedures.

this programme aims to respond to EcSEcc’s mandate to 
mobilise and coordinate stakeholders to drive a common 

provincial infrastructure agenda in the Eastern cape. 
this is done to improve integration of infrastructure 

planning across sectors and spheres of government.



Programme

4 Strategic Governance 
Support

Programme

5 Human resource
Development

PAGE 44

PAGE 40

Programme

6 Eastern Cape
aIDS Council

PAGE 48

the purpose of this programme is to conceptualise 
and facilitate measures to improve quality in education 
and training. the programme provides strategic and 
technical support to the Eastern cape HRD council.

the aim of this programme is to support the office of the 
Premier, Provincial Government departments and Local 

Government in the field of development planning. this will 
include providing support to the centre of government in 

advancing a capable developmental state across spheres, 
buttressed by a strong integrating, planning and executing 

centre. this also includes transitioning provincial municipalities 
from the lower levels of the local government maturity model to 

becoming developmental local government.

EcSEcc is housing the Eastern cape AiDS council 
(EcAc) Secretariat. the Eastern cape AiDS council 

is a multi-sectoral body representing government 
departments and civil society formations. the 

purpose of this programme is to assist the province 
to effectively manage the province’s response 

to HiV/AiDS, tB and Stis. this programme also 
focuses on conducting the secretariat work for the 

Eastern cape AiDS council.



Operations, Finance, Corporate Services & 
Knowledge Management 

Programme 01



2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report    29

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 1.1: 
An Effective and 
Efficient and 
Development oriented  
Governance and 
Management

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation From 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

44 42 43 1
There was under-achievement and over-
achievement: 

A special Audit Committee meeting was 
convened to approve the Audit Plan

A special F&A meeting was called to 
consider the revised budget

A special Audit Committee meeting was 
convened to approve the Audit Plan

Strategic objective 1.2:
Effective and 
Efficient operations 
and knowledge 
Management  

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

Deviation From 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

25 20 24 4
More publications came through the pipeline 
due to emphasis on the implementation of the 
ECSECC Excellence Model

Purpose of the 
Programme 
The purpose of the programme is the 
development and implementation of effective 
and efficient ECSECC management and 
governance systems and procedures.

Programme Objectives
The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following objectives:

An effective and efficient and development oriented governance 
and management;

Effective and efficient operations and knowledge management.
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Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 1.1:  An effective and efficient and development oriented  governance and management

Performance indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance 

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

Number of meetings of functioning governance 
structures that meet all systems requirements 21 20 22 2

A special Audit Committee 
meeting was convened to 
approve the Audit Plan

A special F&A meeting was 
called to consider the revised 
budget

Number of integrated risk management strategies 
implemented 2 1 1

Number of monthly  cash flow management 
reports 12 12 12

An unqualified audit outcome with no matters of 
emphasis in pursuit of good corporate governance 1 1 1

Number of interventions implemented to simplify 
integrated financial systems. 1 1 1

Number of interventions implemented to improve 
HR system  2 2 2

Number of employees above level 4 with signed 
PMDS agreement before 01 April 100% 100% 100%

Number of employee resignations per year  <5% <5% 6% 1% Turnover of 3 employees was 
unexpected

Number of automated business systems 
implemented 1 1 1

Number of ICT system interventions 2 2 2

Strategic objective 1.2:  Effective and efficient operations and knowledge management  

Performance indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

Number of management reports on 
implementation of ECSECC projects to monitor the 
performance of the Entity

4 4 4

Number of systems implemented to strengthen 
monitoring,  reporting and evaluation 1 1 1

Number of spatial development systems 
developed 1 1 1

Number of knowledge management systems 
implemented 1 1 1

Number of knowledge products generated 13 8 12 4

More publications came through 
the pipeline due to emphasis on 
the implementation of the ECSECC 
Excellence Model

Number of ECSECC projects supported through 
active project team participation 4 4 4

Number of research quality tools developed and 
implemented 

1 1 1
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The programme in the period under review concentrated 
on the following deliverables that are in line with the 
strategic goals of the entity:

The entity’s governance structures, the Board of 
Directors and its subcommittees, continued to be 
functional and held all their statutory meetings and 
adopted the Annual Performance Plan and the Annual 
Report as well as in year reports and policies. The 
Board also attended to its accounting responsibilities 
through attending the OTP Portfolio Committee 
meetings to present the APP and the Annual Report. 

ECSECC retained its clean audit opinion from 
the Auditor General of South Africa for the fourth 
consecutive year. 

The entity continued to strengthen its risk 
management through holding an annual risk 
assessment workshop as well as developing 
ECSECC’s annual strategic risk register. 

Through additional funding from the OTP the ECSECC’s 
ICT infrastructure platform is being refurbished. 

The Operations and Knowledge Management 
unit completed a Stakeholder Management and 
Communications Strategy as well as a Research and a 
Knowledge Management Toolkit for ECSECC. 

ECSECC released the following publications in the 
period under review:

Quarterly Review of GDP 

Quarterly review of the Labour Market

Monthly Data Series: inflation reviews

Trade and Ports Movement in the Eastern Cape 

Working Paper 19 “Rural Enterprise partnerships: 
the case of Essential Amathole” is written by Dr 
Pumezo Lupuwana and presents a case study of 
Essential Amathole, a community-based agricultural 
enterprise and its work in establishing an essential 
oils cluster in Nkonkobe Local Municipality over the 
period 2007-2014

Potential role of micro business and entrepreneurs in 
the Eastern Cape informal sector. The report seeks 
to examine the role that micro businesses play in 
the informal sector in the Eastern Cape. The report 
is based on the results of the StatSA “Survey of 
Employers and Self-Employed” (SESE). 

Programme Performance against Budget
Budget Performance

operations, Finance, corporate 
Services and knowledge 
Management

2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 10,707 10,548 159 7,434 8,571 (1,137)

COE 15,220 15,361 (141) 15,167 14,874 293

Capital 500 849 (349) 2,200 550 1,650

TOTAL 26,427 26,758 (331) 24,801 23,995 806

Note:  The 2015 capital expenditure variance is due to the capitalisation of finance leases as assets which does not represent a cash flow and as such was not budgeted for.  Goods and 
services for 2016 is reflected as overspent due to the prepaid expenditure from 2015 being expensed in 2016 but was budgeted for in 2015.  The underspending on capital expenditure for 
2016 is due to the procurement of IT infrastructure in March 2016 and has been reflected as a commitment against the 2016 budget.

Programme Performance against Objectives



Economic Governance

Programme 02
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Purpose of the 
Programme 
The aim of this programme is to shift 
the economic development path of 
the Eastern Cape so that poverty is 
progressively reduced and ECSECC’s 
vision is eventually achieved

Programme Objectives
The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following objective:

To support economic development policy, strategy and planning in 
the Eastern Cape Province.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 2.1: 
to support economic 
development policy, 
strategy and planning 
in the Eastern cape 
province 

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

18 16 16 There was an under-achievement and an 
over-achievement:

The work on the Agricultural Strategy was 
not completed and will be finalised in the 
2016/17 Financial Year

There was one additional dialogue that 
was prioritised in order to give more focus 
on agricultural development



34    2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 2.1: to support economic development policy, strategy and planning in the Eastern cape province

Performance indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviations from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for 

 2015/16

comment on Deviations

Number of economic chapters/strategies 
developed 

2 2 1 1
The work on the Agricultural 
Strategy will be finalised in the 
2016/17 Financial Year

Number of strategic projects conceptualised 
and business cases generated 

2 2

Number of development strategies facilitated 
or developed

3 2 2

Number of position papers developed for 
large economic projects and economic policy 
adjustments developed

4 4 4

Number of dialogues/seminars/public 
engagements/stakeholder forums held 

9 6 7 1
Dialogues were prioritised in 
order to give more focus on 
agricultural development

 

The programme in the period under review concentrated 
on the following deliverables that are in line with the 
strategic goals of the Entity:

The programme supported the Department of Rural 
Development and Agrarian Reform (DRDAR) in the 
review of the Agricultural Development Strategy for 
the Eastern Cape. A review and analysis of agricultural 
support and development has been conducted.  During 
the period under review, as part of the processes 
of inputting on the review of provincial Agriculture 
Development Strategy, ECSECC provided secretariat 
support to the DRDAR and Treasury Agriculture Task 
Team. The work of the Task Team will ensure that the 
strategy is developed in 2016/17. ECSECC multi-
agency partnerships work culminated in an ICT in 
Agriculture mini-conference held in collaboration with 
WSU. ECSECC also facilitated a Strategic Planning 
Session of DRDAR  and this has since firmed up the 
relationship between ECSECC and DRDAR towards 
the development of the Agriculture Development 
Strategy for the Province.

Coordinated the conceptualisation and development 
of the Conceptual and Governance Framework for 
Eastern Cape Operation Phakisa which resulted in an 
Exco Resolution on the governance arrangements for 
Operation Phakisa.

A successful Operation Phakisa Aquaculture 
Session was convened, bringing under one roof 
key stakeholders in the aquaculture sector, which 
include the following: Department of Agriculture, 
Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF), Department of 
Rural Development and Agrarian Reform (DRDAR), 
Department of Economic Development, Environmental 
Affairs and Tourism (DEDEAT), Department of Water 
and Sanitation, East London IDZ, Coega, ECDC, Port 
of Port Elizabeth, Rhodes University, University of 
Fort Hare, Walter Sisulu University and coastal local 
municipalities in the province.

ECSECC participated in the preparation and facilitated 
a successful BCMM GDS Summit. As part of the 
pre-summit activities ECSECC contributed to the 
development of the BCMM MGDS document, 
and facilitated engagement between BCM political 
leadership and industry leaders, at which industry 
lifted their concerns for inclusion in the GDS document 
and programme. The Oceans Economy work has been 
embedded in the BCM Growth and Development 
Strategy. Post the Buffalo City Growth and 
Development Summit and in the period under review 
ECSECC is supporting the Buffalo City Municipality 
in developing various work streams including an 
Economic Partnership between the Metro, Business, 
Government and State Owned Companies.

Programme Performance against Objectives
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ECSECC organised and convened the following  
seminars / dialogues:

Manufacturing in Gauteng and lessons for the 
Eastern Cape: The presenter was Prof. Samantha 
Ashman from the University of Johannesburg.

Economic development opportunities in the Eastern 
Cape: A dialogue between NAFCOC, BMF, PPF 
and the MECs for DRDAR and DEDEAT & Treasury, 
organised by ECSECC in collaboration with business. 

Economic Infrastructure: A dialogue was convened 
as a forerunner to the finalisation of the Provincial 
Infrastructure Plan.

Technical and Vocational Education and Training – 
What can we learn from another African Model?  A 
paper was presented by Dr Nauta from Maastricht 
University, Netherlands.

Agricultural Development in the EC in the light 
of the NDP: Presented by Prof M Karaan from 
the University of Stellenbosch and lead NPC 
Commissioner on Agriculture.

Current Research on Eastern Cape Agriculture:  
Papers were presented by Prof Conradie and Mr 
Gerwel from the University of Cape Town.

Innovation:  Organised a successful visit and 
dialogue involving about 40 participants, at the ELIDZ 
Science and Technology Park.

Partnered with a team from CoGTA and other 
departments to a visit of Sundays River Valley 
Municipality and subsequently developed an 
intervention proposal to protect and enhance Sundays 
River Valley Municipal Citrus Economy and the Local 
Municipality.

Supported and facilitated O R Tambo Mayoral 
Lekgotla and IDP Review sessions that resolved that 
O R Tambo District Municipality must enter into a 
partnership (SLA) with ECSECC in the development 
of the Long Term (2030) District Growth and 
Development Plan aligned to the PDP and NDP. 

Programme Performance against Budget
Budget Performance

Economic 
Governance

2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 310 256 54 210 200 10

COE 4,219 2,916 1,303 3,613 3,181 432

Capital - -

TOTAL 4,529 3,172 1,357 3,823 3,381 442

Note:  Compensation of employees was underspent in 2015 and 2016 due to the programme manager post being vacant until July 2016. 



Infrastructure Governance

Programme 03
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Purpose of the 
Programme 
This programme has been established 
as a stand-alone programme to respond 
to ECSECC’s mandate to mobilise 
and coordinate stakeholders to drive 
a common provincial infrastructure 
agenda in the Eastern Cape. This 
is done to improve integration of 
infrastructure planning across sectors 
and spheres of government. Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following objective:

Develop and drive a common provincial infrastructure agenda to 
support socio-economic development.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 3.1: 
Develop and drive a 
common provincial 
infrastructure agenda to 
support socio-economic 
development

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

23 20 20

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic objective 3.1: Develop and drive a common provincial infrastructure agenda to support socio-economic development
Performance indicator Actual 

Achievement  
2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

comment on Deviations

Number of PICC stakeholder 
forums held 12 12 12

Number of PICC provincial 
reports developed 

4 4 4

Number of PICC studies/ 
reports produced

4 2 2

Number of PICC business 
cases

3 2 2
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The programme in the period under review concentrated on 
the following deliverables that are in line with the strategic 
goals of the entity:

The provincial Infrastructure Plan was completed and 
Version 1 of the document was submitted to the OTP. 
The Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan (ECIP) overall aim 
is to set out long-term priorities. The ECIP also serves 
the following purpose:

Examine provincial infrastructure plans in the light 
of the Provincial Development Plan (2014), which 
was based on the New Growth Path (2010) and the 
National Development Plan (2012).

Complement the National Infrastructure Plan (2012) 
in the EC.

Identify cross-cutting infrastructure delivery 
challenges and propose priority interventions.

Identify sector-specific challenges of infrastructure 
delivery and propose sector-specific priority 
interventions, sequencing and prioritisation models.

Identify possible priority projects in each region (two 
metros and six rural Districts).

Provide a basis for decision-making around 
infrastructure investments and assets.

 Present guidance on institutional arrangements and 
financial implications.

The EC Infrastructure Plan has four goals which are:

Spatial Aspects of Infrastructure:  Infrastructure 
investment responds to spatial aspects of future 
infrastructure demand and progressively undoes 
apartheid geography.

Universal Access to Basic Social Services: The 
provision of infrastructure is accelerated to achieve 
universal access to basic social services.

Infrastructure to Unlock Economic Potential: 
Infrastructure investment helps to unlock economic 
potential.

Infrastructure Planning and Delivery: Improve 
infrastructure planning, delivery, operation and 
maintenance.

The Mzimvubu Governance Framework was presented 
in May 2015 to EXCO and a business case on a Project 
Management Office on Mzimvubu was submitted to 
the OTP. 

The following stakeholder forums were held:

Broadband steering committee and an induction 
session with stakeholders in the O R Tambo Task 
Team took place. The Task Team is a substructure of 
the Eastern Cape Broadband Steering Committee.  
The provincial EXCO was also briefed on the 
progress made on the broadband programme.

ICT stakeholders forum

Two stakeholder forums were held to consider the 
economic and social cluster infrastructure baseline 
reports that are aimed at informing the Eastern Cape 
Ten Year Infrastructure Plan.

The Mzimvubu Catchment Rehabilitation Stakeholder 
Forum was held to consider and agree on the 
contributions of the various stakeholders in the 
rehabilitation programme.

Engagements with all relevant stakeholders on 
the Infrastructure Plan were held including specific 
engagements with the OTP, Provincial Treasury, 
COGTA EC and Roads & Public Works.

ECSECC continued to provide provincial PICC reports  
and the following reports were generated:

Premier’s state of infrastructure report to NCOP 
delegation. 

Premier’s SIPs report to the Legislature.

A SIPs update report was submitted to the OTP in 
October 2015 and another report was prepared and 
presented to the Economic Development Cluster in 
November 2015.

SIPs update report was developed and presented to 
the Executive Council on 27 January 2016.

Programme Performance against Objectives
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Programme Performance against Budget
Budget Performance

infrastructure
Governance

2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 3,300 2,223 1,077 450 1,314 (864)

COE 2,757 2,589 168 2,992 2,815 177

Capital -

TOTAL 6,057 4,812 1,245 3,442 4,129 (687)

Note:  In 2015 the services of professionals were procured and committed against budget.  Part of the work was performed in 2015 and paid for in 2015 however most of the work was 
performed in 2016 and the contract was only completed in 2016.  This resulted in an underspending in 2015 and overspending in 2016 as the total contract was budgeted for in 2015. 



Strategic Governance Support

Programme 04
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Purpose of the 
Programme 
The aim of this programme is to support 
the Office of the Premier, Provincial 
Government Departments and Local 
Government in the field of development 
planning. This will include providing 
support to the centre of government in 
advancing a capable developmental state 
across spheres, buttressed by a strong 
integrating centre. This also includes 
transitioning provincial municipalities 
from the lower levels of the local 
government maturity model to becoming 
developmental local government. Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following objective:

Support the building of a capable developmental state

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 4.1: 
Support the building of a 
capable developmental 
state 

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

16 15 16 1 Additional request from municipality

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic objective 4.1: Support the building of a capable developmental state
Performance indicator Actual 

Achievement  
2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

Number of strategies developed/reviewed 2 2 2
Number of departments supported with strategic planning 6 4 4

Number of metropolitan and district municipalities with 
development plans developed

6 6 7 Additional request from municipality

Number of impact evaluation studies conducted 1 1 1
Number of platforms for reflection, sharing and learning in 
the public sector created

1 2 2
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The programme in the period under review concentrated 
on the following deliverables that are in line with the 
strategic goals of the entity:

ECSECC provided development facilitation and content 
support in the compacting process of the three co-
ordinating departments (through the Local Government 
Task Team established by the Director General 
in the Office of the Premier) towards a cohesive 
integrated support to municipalities. To this end a Local 
Government Co-ordination Framework was developed. 

Facilitated and provided content support to COGTA 
in its developmental local government annual review 
session; Integrated Planning Session in February 2016 
with the participation of the provincial treasury and 
OTP; and its strategic planning session for the 2016/17 
financial year as part of cascading and aligning planning 
to the PDP.

Provided support to the OTP in the facilitation of the 
workshop aimed at developing a Communication 
Strategy for the province as well as assisting with the 
framing, drafting and editing of the strategy.

The research agenda for the province was concluded 
and the first version of the document was submitted to 
OTP.  Towards the development of a research agenda 
for the province a seminar of provincial researchers 
was convened to engage the subject matter and 
develop an approach to government research in the 
province; and an analysis of research capacity in the 
Eastern Cape provincial administration was concluded 
and a concept towards a research agenda was 
developed.

Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality: 
Facilitation support was provided to the Human 
Settlements Developers and SMME Indaba to engage 
Contractors, Stakeholders and Partners towards 
the finalisation of the M3 Agreement between the 
National Department of Human Settlements, the EC 
Department of Human Settlements and the Nelson 
Mandela Bay Metro. ECSECC further facilitated a 
follow up Workshop and Feedback Session with 
SMMEs and Developers on the 21 September 2015. 
This Workshop was addressed by the Minister of 
Human Settlements, Ms Lindiwe Sisulu and Executive 
Mayor of NMBM, Dr Danny Jordaan.  ECSECC 
facilitated a Nelson Mandela Bay Metro Stakeholders 
Workshop on the Integrated Public Transport System 
on the 4 December 2015 with the NMBMM, EC 
Department of Transport and Bus and Taxi Transport 
Operators in Nelson Mandela Bay. 

ECSECC further provided post-negotiations support to 
the Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality to 
maintaining business confidence and positive relations 
between Organised Business and the NMBMM. 
This support was anchored by engagements and 
negotiations to facilitate out of court agreements and 
settlements to effectively and efficiently respond to 
growth and development imperatives as directed by 
the Presidential Delegation to the NMBM in April 2014. 

Amathole District Municipality, Chris Hani District 
Municipality, Buffalo City Municipality, KSD Local 
Municipality, Mbashe Local Municipality and O.R 
Tambo District Municipality: Content facilitation 
support was provided to the municipalities in the IDP 
strategy review sessions. The benefit of the support 
has been to ensure that the provincial socio-economic 
development agenda espoused in the PDP is infused in 
the plans of the Municipality.

ECSECC participated in the pilot roll-out of the ABCD 
approach to ward planning in partnership with GIZ 
and the ECNGO Coalition. In the period under review 
sessions were held at Nkonkobe and Lukhanji Local 
municipalities.

ECSECC developed a concept for the use of Alternative 
Building Technology (ABT) to fast track the School 
Built Programme and supporting the implementation 
processes in support of the provincial Department of 
Education’s infrastructure unit.

ECSECC provided facilitation support to the White 
Paper on Human Settlements Workshop organised 
jointly by the National and Provincial Departments of 
Human Settlements. ECSECC also co-facilitated a 
National Human Settlement Research Seminar, hosted 
by Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University. 

Programme Performance against Objectives
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Programme Performance against Budget
Budget Performance

Strategic Governance Support 2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 350 1,828 (1,478) 200 175 25

COE 1,800 1,651 149 1,950 2,091 (141)

Capital -

TOTAL 2,150 3,479 (1,329) 2,150 2,266 (116)

Note:  Overspending in 2015 is due to commitments against 2014 budget being paid for in 2015 on completion of the contract. 



Human Resource Development

Programme 05
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Purpose of the 
Programme 
The purpose of this programme is to 
enhance human capital formation in the 
Eastern Cape through conceptualising 
and facilitating measures to improve 
quality in education and training. The 
programme provides strategic and 
technical support to the EC Human 
Resource Development Council. Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following objective:

To conceptualise and facilitate measures to improve quality in education 
and training in the Eastern Cape

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements
Strategic objective 1.1:
An effective and 
efficient and 
development oriented  
governance and 
management

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

9 10 10

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic objective 5.1: to conceptualise and facilitate measures to improve quality in education and training in the Eastern cape
Performance indicator Actual 

Achievement  
2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

Number of position papers on teacher development 
Number of position papers on MTBBE 1 1 1
Number of support interventions on MTBBE facilitated 
Number of position papers on Literacy-Numeracy development 1 1
Number of interventions supported for Literacy-Numeracy development
Number of post schooling initiatives facilitated 2 1 1
Number of sector skills support programmes designed 1 1 1
Number of NEETs initiatives designed 1 1 1
Number of labour market research reports produced 2 2 2
Number of labour market position papers produced 1 1 1
Number of HRD related programmes implemented to support  communi-
ties of development practice

1 2 2
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The programme in the period under review concentrated 
on the following deliverables that are in line with the strate-
gic goals of the Entity:

Hosted a maritime skills development workshop 
which was attended by provincial sector stakeholders 
and relevant national departments. The workshop 
agreed on key elements of the maritime skills plan for 
the sector and there is commitment to collaborative 
work to fashion the skills in response to the demands 
of the sector.  Coordination mechanisms were agreed 
upon and were subsequently approved by  EXCO. 

Developed the maritime skills plan for the province 
for approval by EXCO. A Maritime High School was 
launched as part of an effort to build skills for the 
ocean economy.                                                     

Convened and facilitated a successful focus group on 
the 30th of September 2015 of local companies on the 
cost benefit and quality measurement (CBQ) which 
generated much interest for companies to participate 
in the CBQ platform. The companies present shared 
their experiences and challenges they encounter with 
SETAs. Presented a paper titled “The efficacy of CBQ 
as an advisory tool to optimise cost effectiveness and 
quality in company apprenticeship training” at The 
International Network on Innovative Apprenticeship 
conference in Australia which has subsequently 
been published in a book titled “Architecture for 
Apprenticeship: Achieving Economic and Social 
Goals”. These place ECSECC’s work on Work 
Integrated Learning (CBQ) on the international map. 

Supported the Eastern Cape Education Advisory 
Council with facilitation of a series of closed and 
public dialogues with education stakeholders to 
conceptualise a programme for the council. The 
Council is constituted by Higher Education, School 
Governing Bodies, Teacher Unions, Civil Society, 
Traditional Leadership, Organised Local Government 
and Business. 

The provincial Human Resource Development Council 
was functional during the financial year under review 
and set itself a clear agenda and has also established 
five working groups.   The five working groups -Skills 
for the Economy; Public Sector Skills; Research and 
Innovation; Foundational Learning and Post Schooling 
presented their annual plans to the council for 
adoption.  

The HRD Council has agreed that the:

Secretariat to the HRD Council must develop a New 
Charter that will harmonise Council structures and 
strengthen accountability and relationships between 
council and the Executive Authority.

Council must be responsive to current burning 
issues by leveraging skills partnership opportunities 
e.g. Citrus Industry in Sundays River which has its 
own engineering skills capacity.

HRDC must improve interaction with private sector 
work e.g. MBSA Learning Academy.

Ensure better articulation and alignment with the 
National HRD Council.

ECSECC and DEDEAT jointly hosted and facilitated a 
seminar where Dr Michael Rogan presented on the 
subject of ‘Graduates and the jobs challenge in the 
Eastern Cape’.

ECSECC in partnership with UIF has developed 
and designed a New Venture Creation skills project 
for the Not in Employment, Not in Education UIF 
beneficiaries.

A labour market position paper entitled “Assessing 
the skills level and the role of education in the Eastern 
Cape labour market” was produced.

Programme Performance against Objectives
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Programme Performance against Budget
Budget Performance

Human Resource Development 2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 300 253 47 250 289 (39)

COE 2,535 2,459 76 2,746 2,575 171

Capital - -

TOTAL 2,835 2,712 123 2,996 2,864 132

Note:  Variances are considered reasonable. 



HIV/AIDS

Programme 06
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Purpose of the 
Programme 
The purpose of this programme is to 
assist the province to effectively manage 
the provincial response to HIV/AIDS, TB 
and STIs. This programme also focuses 
on conducting the secretariat work for 
the Eastern Cape AIDS Council.

Programme Objectives
The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following objectives:

Reduce the rate of new HIV and TB infections using combination 
prevention methods and a multi-sectorial approach.

Protect human rights, end all unlawful discrimination and inequality 
among people affected by HIV.

Functionality of AIDS councils in the Eastern Cape.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic objective 6.1: 
Reduce the rate of new 
HiV and tB infections 
using combination 
prevention methods 
and a multi-sectorial 
approach 

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

16 18 12 6 Had to discontinue tracking the migration 
of eligible clients to FDC as the EC DoH has 
migrated all eligible clients 
The function of mounting intervention 
programmes to deal with adverse effects of  
HIV treatment was taken over by the EC DoH

Strategic objective 6.2:
Protect human rights, 
end all unlawful 
discrimination and 
inequality among people 
affected by HiV

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement for

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

5 6 6

Strategic objective 6.3: 
Functionality of AiDS 
councils in the Eastern 
cape

Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

Deviation from 
Planned target

to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

25 20 20
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Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic objective 6.1: Reduce the rate of new HiV and tB infections using combination prevention methods and 
a multi-sectorial approach

Performance indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

No of provincial prevention strategies developed, 
coordinated, monitored and implemented focusing on 
key populations

2 1 1

No of policy proposals on sex education in schools, 
prevention of HIV in prisons and liquor Act

3 1 1

No of interventions aimed at preventing the spread of 
HIV and TB in the Eastern Cape province developed

4 4 4

No of interventions designed to monitor and improve 
the migration of people from current treatment to FDC

2 4 1
No longer tracking as the EC DoH has 
migrated all eligible clients

No of interventions designed to deal with adverse 
effects of HIV treatment 

1 4 1
The function was taken over by the 
EC DoH

No of interventions aimed at reducing the impact of 
HIV on children orphaned through HIV and related 
illnesses developed

4 4 4

Strategic objective 6.2: Protect human rights, end all unlawful discrimination and inequality among people affected by HiV
Performance indicator Actual 

Achievement  
2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

No of interventions developed to deal with stigma, 
discrimination and violation of human rights for 
people who are HIV positive

2 4 4

No of interventions developed that focus on gender 
related aspects of HIV and TB 3 2 2

Strategic objective 6.3: Functionality of AiDS councils in the Eastern cape
Performance indicator Actual 

Achievement  
2014/2015

Planned 
target 

2015/2016

Actual 
Performance 

2015/2016

comment on Deviations

No of capacity development plans developed for 
district AIDS councils 

4 3 3

No of plans developed to fund strategic ECAC 
interventions

1 1 1

No of  research based  interventions developed 2 2 2
No of journal articles submitted to professional 
bodies

2 1 1

No of PSP reviews conducted 1
No of PSP quarterly reports submitted 4 4 4
No of ECAC structures that are coordinated and 
functional

4 3 3

No of public dialogues conducted 4 4 4
No of partnerships created for the implementation 
of PSP

3 2 2
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The programme in the period under review concentrated 
on the following deliverables that are in line with the 
strategic goals of the entity:

A report on the provincial sex workers programme 
analysing High Transmission Areas (HTA’s) in the 
Eastern Cape was concluded. A summit on key 
populations was held in partnership with WSU 
and ANOVA Health Institute and a social ills 
summit focusing on teenage pregnancy was held 
in partnership with the provincial Department of 
Education. ECAC facilitated a symposium to discuss 
the draft sexuality policy of the Department of 
Basic Education and the outcome of this was policy 
recommendations to DBE.

A research paper was produced that set the basis 
for appropriate interventions for out of school youth.  
Social Media was used as the main medium to 
dialogue with young people. 

As part of a programme for young women, ECAC 
developed a document to inform the provincial young 
women’s interventions and conducted one radio 
programme with Tru-FM on condom usage.

A door-to-door campaign to promote HCT as a build-up 
to World AIDS day was conducted at Engcobo Local 
Municipality. The World Aids Day main event was held 
at Ecwecweni village at Engcobo Local Municipality. 
It was held in partnership with the Department of 
Communications; Department of Sports, Recreation 
Arts and Culture, Department of Rural Development 
and Agrarian Reform, Department of Health, Chris Hani 
District Municipality and Engcobo Local Municipality. 

As part of ensuring adherence to treatment, 85% 
of ART clients have been migrated to Fixed Dose 
Combination (FDC). A monitoring plan for drug stock 
levels has been established and ECAC is part of the 
team. The FDC switch programme has exceeded 
the 80% target and therefore there was no longer 
a need to track it from ECAC perspective. The FDC 
programme has gone well without any recorded 
adverse effects, so this is also no longer tracked.

The provincial stigma reduction programme was 
launched in O R Tambo District and the focus was 
to enhance the capacity of Community Based 
Organisations to implement the stigma reduction 
programme. Radio interviews were conducted with 
Umhlobo Wenene, Nkonjane, UCR and Tru-FM. Public 
dialogues were held with communities in KSD and 
Nyandeni. The stigma index research was completed 
and results were presented to the council. 

An overview of gender related provincial programmes 
was done. Gender/HIV resource collection  was done 
as part of a gender mainstreaming tool for ECAC 
(based on inernational best practises/Profile/Fach-
und Methodenbereich/Guttmacher/Institute/Lancet/
UNWOMEN /UNAIDS/etc).

As part of building an HIV/Aids research hub, a 
research concept document was completed and the 
research focus prioritised young people as the most 
susceptible sector to HIV/Aids infection.  

A report on the assessment of quality of services for 
children within the Amathole and Sarah Baartman 
Districts was produced and a desktop research 
report was produced on the criteria for Youth and 
MSM friendly facilities. A commemoration of the 
international Children’s Day with the handover of 
Kitchen and Dining hall at Masizakhe children’s home 
was held. Pamphlets regarding children’s rights were 
distributed as part of the programme.

A Community Based Model document was produced 
for discussion and adoption by the ECAC council. The 
model is based on Operation Sukuma Sakhe as well 
as other models like the Ugandan experience. ECAC 
has developed a newsletter as part of enhancing its 
communications approach, branding and visibility.  To 
this end, a profile and guidelines on the community 
based model were completed and the model was 
launched during the World Aids Day event at Engcobo.

A community dialogue was held in Cedarville, a hot 
spot in the Alfred Nzo District.  

An HIV Prevention programme was implemented in 
partnership with the Methodist Church of Southern 
Africa.

A toolkit training on Know Your Epidemic was 
conducted in partnership with Buffalo City Metro, 
Chris Hani District and Sarah Baartman AIDS councils.

Coordinated the hosting of the Provincial TB day 
and a plan to deal with TB challenges at Sarah 
Baartman District Municipality. A dialogue was held 
at Joza location as part of a build up towards TB 
day. TB screening was conducted in two schools in 
Grahamstown. This resulted in the subsequent visit by 
the Premier and the Chairperson of the AIDS council, 
MEC Dyantyi, to discuss a plan with the two schools 
to solve this problem.

A partnership focusing on data sharing was 
established with Beyond Zero.

The ECAC council and its sub-committees were 
functional in the reporting period. The Aids Council 
adopted the Provincial Strategic Plan Monitoring & 
Evaluation mid-term report.

Programme Performance against Objectives
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Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

HiV/AiDS 2014/2015 2015/2016

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(over)/ under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 2,000 1,988 12 1,170 1,127 43

COE 5,070 5,164 (94) 5,519 5,210 309

Capital - -

TOTAL 7,070 7,152 (82) 6,689 6,337 352

Note: Variances are considered reasonable. The underspending on cost of employment in 2016 is due to savings in performance bonuses and subsistence and travel. 
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4.1 voted Funds

Appropriation Main Appropriation Adjusted Appropriation Actual Amount Spent over/under Expenditure

ECSECC R43 736 000 R43 736 000 R39 763 000 R 3 973 000

Responsible Minister Eastern Cape Province Premier: Honourable Phumulo Masualle

Administering Dept. ECSECC

Accounting Officer Chief Executive Officer: Mr Andrew Murray

4.2 aim of vote
The aim of this vote is to support ECSECC to achieve its 
Vision, Mission and Mandate as stated in its founding 
document. 

4.3 eCseCC revenue
ECSECC is not a profit generating organisation and as 
such has no revenue streams.

4.4 eCseCC’s expenditure
ECSECC’s main appropriation was R43 736 000. The 
total expenditure for ECSECC during the financial year 
excluding commitment was R41 017 000.

4.5 transfer payments
ECSECC has made no transfer payments in the period 
under review.

4.6 Conditional grants
The Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammen-
arbeit (GIZ) has allocated funds to ECSECC for the carrying 
out of specific objectives by the Eastern Cape AIDS 
Council (ECAC). The grant received in 2015/16 amounts to 
R793 152.15.

4.7 Capital investment, maintenance 
and asset management

Capital investment: ECSECC’s capital investment 
includes computers, furniture and fittings. During the 
2015/16 financial year an amount of R550 207 was spent. 

Maintenance: There was no major maintenance done 
during 2015/16. No repairs and maintenance amount 
was expended during the year.

Asset Management: The purpose of asset 
management is to enable ECSECC to meet its 
service delivery objectives efficiently and effectively 
by achieving the best possible match of assets 
with programme delivery strategies. Acquisition 
and disposal were dealt with according to relevant 
sections in the asset management policy. All assets 
were recorded in the asset register which was used in 
planning and budgeting and to record the information 
as a basis for the preparation of reports to Treasury, 
including annual financial statements.

Revenue and
Expenditure 04
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Governance

PART C



56    2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report

Introduction 01

02

03

Portfolio Committee
Meetings Attended

Executive Authority

Corporate governance embodies the processes and systems by which ECSECC is directed, controlled and held to 
account. In addition to legislative requirements based on the Companies Act, corporate governance in ECSECC is 
applied through the prescripts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles 
contained in the King III Report on Corporate Governance.

The Legislature, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of ECSECC are responsible for corporate governance.

in the period under review the EcSEcc Board and Management, 
attended the otP Portfolio committee meetings on the dates (right). 
in addition to these dates, the management of EcSEcc presented 
EcSEcc quarterly performance reports to the Portfolio committee. 

The relationship between ECSECC and the Office of The 
Premier is governed by a Service Level Agreement signed 
at the start of every financial year. ECSECC engages with 
the Office of the Premier on its plans in order to understand 
the expectation of the OTP. The OTP is invited to the annual 
strategic review session of the Board. ECSECC reports on a 
quarterly, mid-term and annual basis to the OTP.

ECSECC management meets quarterly with the Premier 
to present quarterly performance results. 

ECSECC has complied with the SLA stipulations and has 
submitted Quarterly Reports and Plans, Mid-term Report 
and an Annual Performance Plan and Annual Report in line 
with the legislative prescripts. 

• 21 April 2015

• 03 September 2015

• 03 November 2015



eCseCC board oF direCtors

EcSEcc StAkEHoLDER REPRESENtAtiVES
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04The Accounting
Authority/Board

4.1 introduction
The Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative 
Council is governed by a multi-stakeholder 
Board of Directors who account to the Premier 
as the Executive Authority. The Premier has 
delegated MEC Mlibo Qhoboshiyane to be 
the Chairperson of the ECSECC Board.  The 
Board of Directors are proposed by the six 
(6) stakeholder constituencies that make up 
ECSECC in terms of ECSECC’s Memorandum 
and Articles of Association. These stakeholder 
representatives are elected at an Annual 
General Meeting and serve for two (2) years, 
after which they become eligible for re-
election if nominated by their stakeholder 
constituencies.

Each stakeholder constituency has two (2) 
representatives on the Board of Directors.  A 
maximum of two additional Board members 
may be recruited onto the Board of Directors at 
the Annual General Meeting.  

The Board meets four times a year to 
consider reports from management and its 
sub-committees. The committees also meet 
four times a year to consider reports from 
management and perform such duties as 
delegated to it by the Board.

4.2 the role of the board
The Board of ECSECC meets four times a year and its role 
is to provide strategic leadership to the entity and ensures 
that corporate governance principles are adhered to. It also 
considers quarterly reports from management and oversees 
the overall performance of the entity in line with its mandate 
and strategic plan.

4.3 board Charter
The ECSECC Board Charter is incorporated into the entity’s 
Memorandum of Incorporation and stipulates the Nature and 
Powers of the Company; Directors – disqualification, removal 
and rotation of Directors; Authority of the Board of Directors; 
Meetings – proceedings, minutes and Annual General 
Meetings; Indemnification and Remuneration of Directors; 
Officer and Committees; Notices; Distribution of Income; 
Deregistration; Financial Year End; Accounting Records and 
Financial Statements and Donations.

Auditing firm Rakoma and Associates were appointed to 
assess the performance of the Board, its Sub-committees 
and individual directors. The assessment also considered the 
requirements set out in the charter(s) of the Board and its Sub-
committees. Rakoma and Associates’ assessment found that 
overall the Board and its Sub-committees complied with the 
requirements of the charters.
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4.4 Composition of the board

Name Designation (in 
terms of the Public 

Entity Board 
structure)

Date 
appointed

Date 
resigned

Qualifications /
Area of Expertise

other committees 
or task teams  (e.g: 
Audit committee / 

Ministerial task team)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

MEC M. Qhoboshiyane
Chairperson & 
Provincial Government

August 2014 Current Constituency Based NONE 1

Mr M. Sogoni Provincial Government
November 
2010

December 
2014

Constituency Based NONE 0

Dr S. Mabizela Higher Education August 2008 Current Finance and Admin 1

Prof T. Mayekiso Higher Education August 2013 Constituency Based Planning & Programmes 0

Mr X. Malamlela Organised Labour August 2015 Current Constituency Based
Risk Management & ICT 
Committee and Planning 
& Programmes

0

Mr M. Toyis Organised Labour August 2014 Current Constituency Based NONE 1

Ms R. Moodley
Non-Governmental 
Organisations

November 
2011

Current Constituency Based
Audit Committee and 
Finance & Admin

4

Mr D. Claassen
Non-Governmental 
Organisations

October 2009 Current Constituency Based Planning & Programmes 4

Mr G. Mpumza Local Government August 2012 Current Constituency Based
Planning & Programmes 
and Finance and Admin

2

Ms N. Meth Local Government
November 
2011

Current Constituency Based NONE 1

Mr P. Ndendela Organised Business
November 
2010

Current Constituency Based Planning & Programmes 4

Mr K. Hustler Organised Business October 2009 Current Constituency Based NONE 3

Mr L. Holbrook Organised Business
November 
2011

Current Constituency Based Finance and Admin 4

Mr Z. Tini Independent Before 2007 Current Finance and Admin 3

· Mr K. Hustler and Mr L. Holbrook are sharing a vote;
· Mr M. Sogoni left his employer as of 31 december 2014 and ECSECC is awaiting otp to appoint his replacement;
· prof t. Mayekiso resigned and ECSECC is awaiting Higher Education to appoint replacement;
· Mr X. Malamlela replaced Mr B. dyasopu.
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4.5 board Committees

committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Finance and Admin Sub-Committee 6 5 Mr Z. Tini (Chaiperson) 
Ms R. Moodley
Mr L. Holbrook 
Mr G. Mpumza
Dr S. Mabizela

Planning and Programmes 
Sub-Committee

4 4 Mr P. Ndendela (Chaiperson) 
Mr G. Mpumza
Mr D. Claassen
Mr X. Malamlela

Audit Committee 5 5 Ms N. Mnconywa (Chairperson) 
Ms R. Moodley (Board Rep.) 
Mr R.J. Hill 
Mr G. Bana 
Ms L. Steele

Risk Management & ICT Committee 4 5 Mr G. Bana (Chairperson) 
Mr X. Malamlela (Board Rep.) 
Mr C. Sparg 
Ms N. Hlongwane
Ms Z. Ngcwabe

· Ms Z. ngcwabe was appointed as iCt Specialist in december 2015;
· Risk Management Committee name changed in december 2015 to incorporate iCt functions.

4.6 remuneration of board members
The Board remuneration is discussed in the Annual Financial Statements section.  The remuneration of the Board has been 
determined through benchmarking with other entities in the province. Going forward these benchmarks will be reviewed 
in line with Treasury Regulations and in consultation with the Executive Authority.

Name Remuneration other allowance other re-imbursements (mainly travel) total

MEC M Qhoboshiana NIL NIL NIL NIL

Dr S. Mabizela R15 200.00 NIL NIL R15 200.00

Mr M. Toyis R11 400.00 NIL R1 735.80 R13 135.80

Ms R. Moodley R68 400.00 NIL R429.00 R68 829.00

Mr D. Claassen R45 600.00 NIL R14 348.40 R59 948.40

Mr G. Mpumza R30 400.00 NIL R429.00 R30 829.00

Ms N. Meth R15 200.00 NIL R2 811.60 R18 011.60

Mr P. Ndendela R54 000.00 NIL R1 386.00 R55 386.00

Mr K. Hustler R19 000.00 NIL R7 240.20 R26 240.20

Mr L. Holbrook R45 600.00 NIL NIL R45 600.00

Mr Z. Tini R62 600.00 NIL R858.00 R63 458.00
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05Risk Management
The scope of internal audit is in line with the Treasury 
Regulations, and limited to the extent that only samples 
of transactions are selected to determine whether the 
network of risk management, control, and governance 
processes, as designed and represented by management, 
is adequate and functioning in a manner to determine 
whether management processes exist to ensure that: 

Risks are appropriately identified and managed; 

Interaction with the various governance groups occurs 
as needed; 

Significant financial, managerial, and operating 
information is accurate, reliable and timely; 

Employees actions are in compliance with policies, 
standards, procedures, and applicable laws and 
regulations; 

Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently 
and adequately protected; 

Programmes, plans and objectives are achieved; 

Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in 
the entity’s control processes; and 

Significant legislative or regulatory issues impacting 
the entity are recognised and addressed appropriately.

The summary of audit work performed in the year under 
review includes:

Facilitation of organisation risk assessment;

ICT Governance Audit;

Procurement and Contract Management;

Fraud Program Audit;

Audit of Predetermined Objectives;

Review of Annual Financial Statements;

Follow Up Audits;

Review of Internal Controls Dashboard; 

Update of Charters; and

Attendance at Risk and Audit Committee meetings

The Audit Committee is an integral component of the 
risk management process and specifically the Committee 
oversees financial reporting risks, fraud risks associated to 
internal financial controls.  The Committee considers the 
overall risk management processes in the Council.
Risk management is embedded in ECSECC activities, 
considered in the Annual Performance Plan and 
Operational Plan and is included in all project plans.  Risk 
management is also discussed at management committee 
meetings and is monitored and reported on a quarterly 
basis.  Risk management is also included in all Manager’s 
performance agreements.
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07

06

Internal Audit and 
Audit Committee

Internal Control Unit
The role of the internal control unit is played by the Internal Audit as well as by oversight committees like the Internal 
Audit and Risk Management and ICT committees. The detailed discussion is expressed in section 7 below. 

3.1 the audit Function at eCseCC
The internal controls, finances and performance 
information of ECSECC were reviewed and audited by the 
Auditors. ECSECC’s internal audit function is outsourced. 
The Audit functions have been performed for the financial 
year under review by the following Auditors:

internal Auditors external Auditors

SizweNtsalubaGobodo Auditor General of SA

Mr Ntsikelelo Mzamane Mr Stuart Comrocks

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed 
hereunder and meets at least four (4) times per annum as 
per its approved charter.  During the current year four (4) 
meetings were held with one (1) special meeting. 

name of member number of meetings attended

Ms N. Mnconywa 5

Ms R. Moodley 5

Mr G. Bana 5

Ms L. Steele 4

Mr R.J. Hill 5

The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:

Name Qualifications internal or 
external

if internal, 
position in the 
public entity

Date appointed Date 
Resigned

No. of Meetings 
attended

Ms N. Mnconywa Charter Accountant External February 2014 Current 5

Ms R. Moodley
Honours in Human and 
Social Studies

Board 
Representative

Board Member February 2014 Current 5

Mr G. Bana
Bachelor of Technology 
Internal Auditing

External February 2014 Current 5

Ms L. Steele Bachelor of Arts External February 2014 Current 4

Mr R.J. Hill
Diploma State Accounts 
and Finance

External February 2014 Current 5
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08

09 10

Compliance with 
Laws and Regulations

Fraud and 
Corruption

Minimising 
Conflict of 

Interest

ECSECC has a compliance policy 
which regulates the state of 
compliance within the entity. Further, 
there are policies and procedures that 

employees abide by which are made 
available to each individual. Provincial 
Treasury makes available to the 
Entity any changes to regulations that 

might have an impact on the Entity. 
Lastly, ECSECC obtains some level 
of comfort from internal and external 
audits when it comes to compliance.

ECSECC has a Fraud Prevention Policy, a Strategy and 
a Plan in place. All these documents are communicated 
to employees and individuals are required to comply. 
Employees and other stakeholder can make use of the 
whistleblowing hotline administered by the Office of the 
Premier. ECSECC receives quarterly reports confirming 
any whistle blowing from the Office of the Premier. 
These are communicated to the Risk Management 
Board Sub-Committee. Further, employees are 
encouraged to make confidential disclosure should they 
suspect any instances of Fraud within the organisation.

There has been no reports of fraudulent activities in the 
current financial year.

ECSECC makes every available effort to 
minimise the risk of conflict of interest in all its 
business dealings. The entity has policies and 
procedures that assist in managing the risk. 
Further, employees are required to complete a 
disclosure of interest annually, including supply 
chain practitioners. All Bid Adjudication and 
Evaluation Committee members also disclose 
their interest at every sitting. Members that are 
conflicted are excused from that specific sitting.
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11ECSECC has a Code of Conduct that is signed by the employees on an annual basis. Each 
employee signs acknowledgement at the beginning of each financial year. We also conduct 
an information session once a year. Where there is a breach of the Code of Conduct the entity 
deals with it within the prescripts of its disciplinary procedures and applicable legislation.

12The entity strives towards keeping a welcoming, safe and healthy working environment and 
has not experienced any health challenges or injury on duty in the period under review.

13ECSECC has not appointed a Company Secretary. The Executive Secretary of the CEO plays 
the role of the Board Secretary and is responsible for driving the functionality and providing 
administrative support to the Board. 

14ECSECC is a public entity responsible for advising government on socio-economic development 
policy choices. In addition, ECSECC is a non-profit entity and integral in its work is to provide 
advice that will ultimately lead to the qualitative change in the lives of the people. Consequently, 
ECSECC has no specific social responsibility programmes as this is integral to all its work.

Code of Conduct

Health and Safety

Board Secretary

Social Responsibility
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14.1 audit Committee 
responsibility
The Audit Committee (hereinafter 
referred to as the Committee) is 
a sub-committee of the Eastern 
Cape Socio Economic Consultative 
Council (hereinafter referred to as the 
Council), established to assist it in 
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities 
in terms of section 77 of the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), 
No. 1 of 1999 read together with 
Treasury Regulation 3.1 and 27. The 
Committee’s mandate is to assist the 
Council specifically in matters relating 
to statutory and internal audits; 
internal controls; financial control 
and reporting; statutory compliance 
relative to the financial statements; 
performance; risk management and 
corporate governance.

The Audit Committee reports that it 
has complied with its responsibilities 
arising from the sections as stated 
above, has adopted appropriate 
formal terms of reference as its audit 
committee charter, has regulated 
its affairs in compliance with this 
charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein.

14.2 the effectiveness of 
internal control
The system of internal control applied 
by the entity over financial risk 
and risk management is effective, 
efficient and transparent.

In line with the PFMA, Companies 
Act 2008 and King III on Corporate 
Governance requirements, Internal 
Audit provides the Audit Committee 
and management with assurance that 
the internal controls are appropriate 
and effective.  This is achieved by 

means of risk management process, 
as well as identification of corrective 
actions and suggested enhancements 
to the controls and processes.

From the reports of the Internal 
Auditors no matters were reported 
that indicate any material deficiencies 
in the system of internal control or 
any deviations therefrom.  

Accordingly, we can report that there 
was continuous improvement in the 
system of internal controls for the 
period under review.

14.3 evaluation of 
Financial statements
The Audit Committee has:

Reviewed and discussed the 
financial statements to be 
included in the annual report;

Reviewed accounting policies and 
practices.

Reviewed the entity’s compliance 
with legal and regulatory 
provisions; and

Reviewed significant adjustments 
resulting from the audit.

14.4 external auditors and 
audit report 
The audit committee has verified 
the independence of the external 
auditors, Auditor General South Africa 
(AGSA), especially in relation to the 
team allocated to the entity and has 
discussed the audit fees and the 
engagement terms.

The audit committee concurs with 
the audit report from AGSA and 
have noted with great appreciation 

the continued good performance 
by ECSECC.  ECSECC obtained a 
clean audit opinion for the fourth 
consecutive year.  This is due to 
the Audit Committee performing its 
oversight mandate effectively and 
commitment from management in 
implementing recommendations by 
Internal Audit and Audit Committee.

14.5 internal audit
Internal Audit is outsourced to an 
external service provider Sizwe 
Ntsaluba Gobodo. The Audit 
Committee is satisfied that the 
internal audit function operated 
effectively and that it has addressed 
the risks pertinent to the entity in 
its audits. The Audit Committee 
appreciates the good working 
relations between ECSECC and 
internal auditors. 
 

14.6 audit Committee 
members and attendance 
The Audit Committee consists of the 
members listed hereunder and should 
meet at least 4 times per annum as 
per its approved terms of reference.  
During the current year 5 meetings 
were held. 

Member Meetings attended
Ms N Mnconywa 
(Chairperson)

5

Ms R Moodley 5
Mr G Bana 5
Ms L Steele 5
Mr RJ Hill 5

14Audit Committee 
Report

N MNCONyWA
Chairperson of the Audit Committee

We are pleased to present our 
report for the financial year ended 
31 March 2016.
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1.1 overview of hr 
matters at eCseCC
ECSECC implemented a number 
of human resource development 
programmes in the period under 
review.  Staff underwent training 
programmes with a view to further 
developing their skills and capabilities. 

The required submissions to the 
Department of Labour were made 
in time, for example, the submission 
according to the Compensation for 
Occupational Injuries and diseases 
Act and Employment Equity Act. 

This financial year has also seen a 
number of Human Resources Policies 
being amended in order to align with 
labour legislation.  

An amended Performance 
Management and Development 
System was implemented during the 
financial year under review.

1.2 set hr priorities for 
2015 – 2016 Financial 
year and the impact of 
these priorities 
Three main priorities for the  financial 
year were to assess the alignment of 
ECSECC Human Resources policies 
with the amendments in Labour 
Legislation, meeting employment 
equity targets and assessing staff 
satisfaction. 

After the gazetting of amendments 
in Labour Legislation like the Labour 
Relations Amendments Bill 2012, 
the entity reviewed all HR policies 
and systems that are affected 

by the amendments. As a result 
amendments were made to the 
Temporary Employee Policy and 
Studies Policy and ECSECC policies 
and systems are now reflecting the 
amendments in legislation. 

The second main priority was on 
meeting the Employment Equity 
Targets and the entity’s plan. The 
entity has gone beyond what was 
targeted for the 2014 - 2015 financial 
year. It has achieved 2016 - 2017 
targets in top management level. 
There is now equal representation 
of men and women in the top 
management level.

1.3 workforce planning 
Framework and key 
strategies to attract 
and recruit a skilled 
and Capable labour 
workforce
ECSECC identifies the key capabilities 
required in order to achieve the 
entity’s five year strategic plan 
and its service excellence model. 

Based on the identified priorities, 
the agreed service excellence 
model and identified capabilities, 
the organisational design 
implications are then identified. The 
programmes that are needed in 
order to achieve the objectives are 
identified and together they form 
up an organisation structure. This 
organisational structure is reviewed 
on an annual basis, as part of the 
annual planning process. It is then 
approved by the Board of Directors 
for implementation at the beginning 
of the financial year. ECSECC 
management then fills the positions 
based on the approved organogram.

1.4 employee performance 
management Framework
ECSECC uses a Performance 
Management and Development 
System to manage performance 
of employees. The performance 
management system that is used 
does not only seek to assess and 
enhance performance of employees 
but it also seeks to create motivated 
employees who are resilient, take 
initiative, innovative and are effective 
self-leaders. The performance 
management system is structured 
such that it encourages employees to 
practice the organisational values that 
are reflected in the entity’s five year 
strategic plan.

Performance reviews are done twice 
a year. The first review covers the first 
six months and the second review 
covers the whole financial year. 
Managers are encouraged to give 
feedback on employee performance 
throughout the financial year.

01Introduction
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1.5 employee wellness programmes
ECSECC has got a wellness plan that identifies the 
activities that are carried out by the entity to promote 
wellness of employees. The wellness programme focuses 
on  the person as a whole (physical, psychological, social 
and financial health). 

1.6 hr policy development 
The policies of ECSECC are approved by the Board of 
Directors. This final approval is preceded by consultations 
with management and employees of the entity. There 
were no new human resources related policies developed 
during the period under review however there were 
reviews and adjustments to existing policies (for example 
sexual harassment, study and training policy).

1.7 highlight of achievements
ECSECC submitted the amended Employment Equity Plan 
as per the requirements of the Department of Labour. 

The Human Resources Strategy is going to be adjusted 
to ensure that the main contributions of the employees 
are incorporated. 

1.8 Challenges faced by eCseCC
Budget cuts have resulted in the freezing of some 
positions. This may affect the ability of the entity to deliver 
because the amount of projects that the entity is expected 
to deliver on has not been reduced.

The reduced budget also implies that the funds allocated 
for the capacity building of staff members is reduced. This 
may affect delivery in the long run because employees 
are supposed to be continuously capacitated in order to 
ensure effective and quality delivery. 

1.9 Future human resources plans 
and goals
ECSECC is going to be placing importance on the 
communication of organisational values and the promotion 
of an organisational culture that is linked to its values. This 
is going to be done through information sessions where 
people  would discuss these and their implication on 
expected behaviour.

There is also going to be a lot of emphasis on skills 
retention. This is going to be approached through the use 
of strength based management . 
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2.1 expenditure
Personnel costs by programme, 2015/16

Programme total 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure

(R’000)

training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

other Related 
costs (R’000)

Personnel cost 
as a percent of 

total expenditure

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000)
Finance, Corporate Affairs, Strategic, 
Operations and Knowledge Management

 14,875  14,222 186 467 96% 620

Economic Governance  3,180  3,062 32 86 96% 636
Infrastructure Governance  2,815  2,722 - 93 97% 704
Strategic Governance Support  2,090  1,989 26 75 95% 523
Human Resources Development  2,575  2,467 42 66 96% 858
HIV/AIDS  5,211  5,037 - 174 97% 651
TOTAL  30,746  29,499 286 961 96% 665

Personnel costs by salary band, 2015/16

Salary bands Personnel Expenditure (R’000) % of total personnel cost Average personnel cost per 
employee (R’000)

Lower skilled (Grade A – B) 2,503 8% 250
Skilled (Grade C) 5,897 20% 536
Highly Skilled (Grade D & S) 12,219 41% 873
Highly skilled with Supervision (Grade D3) 6,231 22% 1,039
Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 2,649 9% 1,325
TOTAL 29,499 100% 804.44

Salaries and overtime and Medical Assistance 2015/16

Programme Salaries overtime
Amount (R’000) Salaries as a % of 

personnel cost
Amount 
(R’000)

overtime as a % of 
personnel cost

Finance, Corporate Affairs, Strategy, 
Operations & Knowledge Management 

                        14,222 48%    4 0.03%

Economic Governance                           3,062 10% -   
Infrastructure Governance                           2,722 9% -   

Strategic Governance Support                           1,989 7% -   
Human Resources Development                           2,467 8% -   
HIV/AIDS                           5,037 18% -    
TOTAL                         29,499 100%    4 0.03%

02Human Resource 
Oversight Statistics
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Salaries, overtime and Medical Assistance by salary bands, 2015/16

Salary Bands Salaries overtime
Amount (R’000) Salaries as a % of 

personnel cost
Amount (R’000) overtime as a % of 

personnel cost
Lower skilled (Grade A – B)  2,503 8%  4 0.2%
Skilled (Grade C)  5,897 20%  -   
Highly Skilled (Grade D & S)  12,219 41%  -   
Highly skilled with Supervision (Grade D3)  6,231 22%  -   
Chief Executive Officer  (Grade E)  2,649 9%  -   
TOTAL  29,499 100%  4 0.2%

2.2 employment and vacancies

Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2016

Programme Number of posts Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate Number of posts filled 
additional to the establishment

Administration and Finance 16 15 94% 0
Economic Governance 5 5 100% 0
Strategic Governance and Infrastructure 
Support Programme

5 4 80% 0

Strategy, Operations and Knowledge 
Management

9 9 100% 0

Eastern Cape Aids Council 8 8 100% 0
Human Resources Development 4 3 75% 0
TOTAL 47 44 94%
Administration and Finance 16 15 94% 0

Employment and vacancies by salary bands, by 31 March 2016

Salary band Number of posts Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate Number of posts filled 
additional to the establishment

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 10 10 100% None
Skilled (Grade C) 12 11 92% None
Highly skilled  (Grade D1; D2 & S) 16 14 88% None
Highly skilled supervision (Grade D3) 6 6 100% None
Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 2 2 100% None
TOTAL 46 43 96% None
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Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2016

critical occupations Number of posts Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate Number of posts filled additional to the 
establishment

Chief Executive Officer 1 1 100% None
Chief Financial Officer 1 1 100% None
Corporate Affairs Manager 1 1 100% None
Chief Operations Officer 1 1 100% None
TOTAL 4 4 100% None

2.3. job evaluation
Job Evaluation, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary band Number of 
posts

Number of Jobs 
Evaluated

% of posts 
evaluated by 
salary bands

Posts upgraded Posts downgraded
Number % of  posts 

evaluated
Number % of  posts 

evaluated
Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 12 2 17% 2 17% 0 0%
Skilled (Grade C) 12 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Highly skilled  (Grade D1; D2 & S) 16 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 6 1 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 2 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
TOTAL 48 2 4% 0 4% 0 0%

Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to posts being upgraded, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Beneficiaries African Asian coloured White total
Female 1 0 0 0 1
Male 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 1
Employees with a disability 0

Employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

occupation Number of 
employees

Job evaluation level (according to 
Peterson Job grading system

Remuneration 
level

Reason for deviation

Programme Manager Strategic 
Governance and Infrastructure Support 
Programme

1 D3 Higher
Approved by the Board of Directors in 
order to counter the salary offer from 
another organisation 

Resource Centre Coordinator 1 C2 Higher
Salaries were already given before 
Peterson Job Grading system was 
established

Receptionist 1 B1 Higher
Salaries were already given before 
Peterson Job Grading system was 
established

Total Number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation in 2015/16: 3
Percentage of total employment: 7%
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Profile of employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

Beneficiaries African Asian coloured White total
Female 2 0 0 0 2
Male 1 0 0 0 1
Total 3 0 0 0 3
Employees with a disability 0

Total Number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determined by job evalua-
tion in 2015/ 16

3

2.4. employment Changes
Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary Band Number of employees per 
band as on 1 April 2015

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department

turnover rate

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 12 2 1 25%
Skilled (Grade C) 12 1 1 17%
Highly skilled  (Grade D1; D2 & S) 16 2 1 19%
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 7 1 2 43%
TOTAL 47 6 5 23%

Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

occupation: Number of employees per 
occupation as on 1 April 

2015

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department

turnover rate

Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 7 1 2 43%

Executive Director (Grade E) 2 1 0 50%

TOTAL 9 2 2 44%

Reasons why staff are leaving the entity

termination type Number % of total
Death 0 0%
Resignation 3 6%
Expiry of contract 0 0%
Dismissal – operational changes 0 0%
Dismissal – misconduct 0 0%
Dismissal – inefficiency 0 0%
Discharged due to ill-health 0 0%
Retirement 0 0%
Transfers to other Public Service Departments 0 0%
Other 0 0%
TOTAL 3 6%
Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 6
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Promotions by critical occupation

occupation Employees as 
at 1 April 2015

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary level promotions 
as a % of employees by 

occupation

Progressions to 
another notch within 

a salary level

Notch progressions as 
a % of employees by 

occupation
Executive Directors 2 0 1 0 0
Chief Operations Officer 1 0 0 0 0
Corporate Affairs Manager 1 0 0 0 0

Promotions by salary band

Salary Band Employees 1 
April 2015

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary bands promotions 
as a % of employees by 

salary level

Progressions to 
another notch within 

a salary level

Notch progressions as 
a % of employees by 

salary band
Lower skilled (Grade A – B) 12 2 17% 0 0%
Skilled (Grade C) 12 0 0% 0 0%
Highly Skilled (Grade D & S) 16 0 0% 0 0%
Highly skilled with 
Supervision (Grade D3)

7 1 14% 0 0%

Executive Director (Grade E) 2 0 0% 0 0%
TOTAL 49 3 6% 0 0%

2.5. employment equity
total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories as on 31 March 2016

occupational categories (SASco) Male Female total
African coloured indian White African coloured indian White

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Chief Financial Officer 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Senior Managers 4 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 8
Project Managers 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3
Program staff 2 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 8
Specialists 2 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 6
Clerks 1 0 0 0 11 0 1 0 13
General Assistants 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 9 1 0 2 27 1 1 1 42
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
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Recruitment for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

occupational Bands Male Female
African coloured indian White African coloured indian White total

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chief Financial Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Specialists: Professionally qualified and experienced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Project Managers: Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Programme staff: skilled technical and academically 
qualified but no management responsibility

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
General Assistants: Unskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Promotions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

occupational Bands Male Female

African coloured indian White African coloured indian White total
Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Specialists: Professionally qualified and experienced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Project Managers: Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Programme staff: skilled technical and academically 
qualified but no management responsibility

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3
General Assistants: Unskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Interns 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 7
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

terminations for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

occupational Bands Male Female
African coloured indian White African coloured indian White total

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chief Financial Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Specialists: Professionally qualified and experienced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Project Managers: Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Programme staff: skilled technical and academically 
qualified but no management responsibility

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
General Assistants: Unskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 3
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Male Female
African coloured indian White African coloured indian White total

Disciplinary action 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skills development for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

occupational categories Male Female
African coloured indian White African coloured indian White total

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chief Financial Officer 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Senior Management 4 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 7
Specialists: Professionally qualified and experienced 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Project Managers: Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Programme staff: skilled technical and academically 
qualified but no management responsibility

2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 0 0 0 0 3 0 1 0 4
General Assistants: Unskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 7 1 0 0 9 0 1 0 18
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2.6. performance rewards
Performance Rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Beneficiary Profile cost
Number of 

beneficiaries
total number of employees 

in group
% of total within 

group
cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee
African: 21
Male 4 19% 126 32
Female 17 80% 397 25
Asian: 2
Male 1 50% 31 31
Female 1 50% 27 27
Foreigner: 3
Male 2 66% 65 32
Female 1 33% 36 36
Coloured: 1
Male 1 100% 30 30
Female 0 0% 0 0
White:
Male 5 5 100% 188 37
Female 0 0% 0 0
Employees with a disability: 0 0 0% 0 0
TOTAL 32 32 100% 1 422 19
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Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary Bands Beneficiary Profile cost
Number of 

beneficiaries
Number of 
employees

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

Lower skilled (Grade A – B) 9 14 Lower skilled (Grade A – B) 9 14
Skilled (Grade C) 8 8 Skilled (Grade C) 8 8
Highly Skilled (Grade D1, & S ) 9 9 Highly Skilled (Grade D1, & S ) 9 9
TOTAL 26 31 Total 26 31

Performance Rewards by critical occupations, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

critical occupations Beneficiary Profile cost
Number of 

beneficiaries
Number of 
employees

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

Highly skilled with Supervision 
(Grade D3)

8 8
Highly skilled with Supervision 
(Grade D3)

8 8

Executive Director (Grade E) 1 1 Executive Director (Grade E) 1 1
TOTAL 9 9 Total 9 9
Highly skilled with Supervision 
(Grade D3)

8 8
Highly skilled with Supervision 
(Grade D3)

8 8

2.7. Foreign workers
Foreign Workers, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, by salary band

Salary Band 1 April 2015 31 March 2016 change
Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Skilled (Grade C) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 1 9% 1 9% 0 0%
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 1 14% 1 14% 0 0%
Chief Financial Officer (Grade E) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
TOTAL 2 2 0

Foreign Worker, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, by major occupation

Major occupation 1 April 2015 31 March 2016 change
Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Senior Management 1 14% 1 14% 0 0%
Specialists: Professionally qualified and experienced specialists 1 6% 1 6% 0 0%
TOTAL 2 2 0
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2.8. leave utilisation for the period 1 january 2015 – 31 december 2015
Sick leave, 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary Band total days % days with 
medical 

certification

Number of 
Employees using 

sick leave

% of total employees 
using sick leave

Average days per 
employee

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 83 91% 7 78% 5.3
Skilled (Grade C) 46 39% 8 67% 3.8
Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 24 13% 6 38%% 2
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 11 36% 4 67% 1.3
Chief Executive Director  (Grade E) 0 0% 0 0% 0
Chief Financial Officer (Grade E) 0 0% 0 0% 0
TOTAL 164 25 3.1

Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015  

Salary Band total days 
taken

% Days with 
medical 

certification

Number of 
Employees using 
disability leave

% of total 
employees using 
disability leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
cost 

(R’000)
Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Grade C) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chief Executive Officer  (Grade E) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chief Financial Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

Annual Leave, 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary Bands total days taken Average per employee
Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 189 3.4
Skilled (Grade C) 191 4.2
Highly skilled  (Grade D1; D2 & S) 286 4.8
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 117 3.5
Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 31 5.2
Chief Financial Officer (Grade E) 20 5
TOTAL 825 4.35

capped leave, 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 – Not Applicable

Salary Bands total days of capped 
leave taken

Average number of days 
taken per employee

Average capped leave per employee as 
at 31 December 2014

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 0 0 0
Skilled (Grade C) 0 0 0
Highly skilled  (Grade D1; D2 & S) 0 0 0
Highly skilled  supervision (Grade D3) 0 0 0
Executive Director (Grade E) 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0
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Leave pay-outs for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Reason total Amount (R’000) Number of Employees Average payment per employee
Leave pay-out due to non-utilisation of leave for 
the previous cycle

0 0 R0

Current leave pay-out on termination of service 
for 2015/16

R58.3 2 R29

TOTAL R58.3 2 R29

2.9. hiv and aids and health promotion programmes
Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

categories of employees identified to be at high risk of 
contracting HiV and related diseases ( if any)

key Steps taken to reduce the risk

Programme staff members who sleep away from home as a result of 
ECSECC business

Condoms are kept in public areas at ECSECC so that employees can pick them up 
at any time needed.

Details of Health Promotion and Aids Programmes 

Question yes No Details, if yes
Has the entity designated a member of the SMS to implement the 
provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name and position

n/a n/a
ECSECC is not registered according to PSA and is therefore not bound 
by PSR but a senior manager responsible for HIV/AIDS and Health 
Promotion is Ms Nomsa Mbovani (Corporate Affairs Manager)

Does the entity have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific 
staff members to promote the health and well-being of your employ-
ees? If so, indicate the number of employees who are involved in this 
task and the annual budget that is available for this purpose

Yes

Corporate Affairs Unit is a designated Unit to promote health and 
wellbeing issues of employees. This unit consists of Human Resources 
Officer, Administration Assistant and Corporate Affairs Manager.

Has the entity introduced an Employee Assistance or Health Promo-
tion Programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/
services of this Programme.

yes
It is called a wellness programme. The programme aims to take care 
of the physical, social, family, financial and psychological aspects of 
each employee.

Has the established  (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part VI 
E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, 
please provide the names of the members of the committee and the 
stakeholder(s) that they represent

yes

ECSECC is not registered according to PSA and is therefore not bound 
by PSR. ECSECC has wellness committee consisting of Corporate 
Affairs Manager, HIV/AIDS researcher, human rights and Impact 
Mitigation Manager and Union Representative (NEHAWU).

Has the entity reviewed its employment policies and practices to 
ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on 
the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/prac-
tices so reviewed.

yes

The policies are reviewed annually to ensure that they keep up with 
the changes in legislation and do not discriminate against people ( for 
example, human resources policies and temporary employee policies)
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2.10. labour relations
The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions with the entity:

collective agreements, 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Subject Matter Date

Annual Salary Increase for 2014 – 2015 financial year 21 January 2014

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted with the Public Entity:

Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

outcomes of disciplinary hearing Number % of total
Correctional counselling 2 100%
Verbal warning 0 0%
Written warning 0 0%
Final written warning 0 0%
Suspended without pay 0 0%
Fine 0 0%
Demotion 0 0%
Dismissal 0 0%
Not guilty 0 0%
Case withdrawal 0 0%
TOTAL 2 100%

types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

type of misconduct Number % of total
N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL N/A N/A

Grievance lodged for the period 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of grievances resolved Number % of total
Number of grievances not resolved 0 0%
Total number of grievances lodged 0 0%
TOTAL 0 0%

Disputes lodged with councils for the period 01 April 2015 to 31 March 201

Number of disputes upheld Number % of total
Number of disputes dismissed 0 0%
Total number of disputes lodged 0 0%
TOTAL 0 0%

Strike actions for the period 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (no strike action experienced)

total number of person working days lost 0
Total cost (R’000) of working days lost 0
Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0



2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report    79

Precautionary suspensions for the period 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (no employees were suspended)

Number of people suspended 0
Number of people whose suspension exceed 30 days 0
Average number of days suspended 0
Cost (R’000) of suspensions 0

2.11. skills development 
Skills development for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Gender Number of 
employees

 as at 1 April 
2015

training needs identified at start of reporting period

Learnerships Skills programmes
 & other short course

other forms of 
training 

total 

Chief Executive Officer
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 0 0 0 0

Chief Financial Officer
Female 1 0 1 0 1
Male 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management
Female 4 0 0 2 2
Male 4 0 0 3 3

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

Female 2 0 2 0 2
Male 4 0 0 3 3

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

Female 3 0 3 0 3
Male 0 0 0 1 1`

Programme staff: skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

Female 6 0 0 5 5

Male 2 0 0 3 3

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making

Female 12 0 7 0 7
Male 1 0 0 0 0

General Assistants: Unskilled and defined decision 
making

Female 2 0 0 2 3
Male 0 0 0 0 0

Interns
Female 1 0 0 2 2
Male 0 0 0 1 1

TOTAL
Female 31 0 11 14 25
Male 12 0 9 9 18

Employees with disabilities
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 0 0 0 0
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training provided for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Gender Number of 
employees

 as at 1 April 2015

training needs identified at start of reporting period

Learnerships

Chief Executive Officer
Female 0 0 Chief Executive Officer Female 0
Male 1 0 Male 1

Chief Financial Officer
Female 1 0 Chief Financial  Officer Female 1
Male 0 0 Male 0

Senior Management
Female 3 0 Senior Management Female 3
Male 4 0 Male 4

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

Female 2 0
Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

Female 2

Male 4 0 Male 4

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

Female 3 0
Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

Female 5

Male 0 0 Male 1

Programme staff: skilled technical 
and academically qualified but no 
management responsibility

Female 6 0
Programme staff: skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

Female 6

Male 2 0 Male 3

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

Female 11 0
Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

Female 9

Male 1 0 Male 0

General Assistants: Unskilled and 
defined decision making

Female 2 0
General Assistants: Unskilled and defined 
decision making

Female 3-

Male 0 0 Male 0

Interns
Female 1 0 Interns Female 1
Male 0 0 Male 0

TOTAL
Female 31 0 Total Female 30
Male 12 0 Male 16

Employees with disabilities
Female 0 0 Employees with disabilities Female 0
Male 1 0 Male 1

2.12. injury on duty 
injury on duty, 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (the following tables provide basic information on injury on duty)

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total
Required basic medical attention only 0 0%
Temporal Total Disablement 0 0%
Permanent Disablement 0 0%
Fatal 0 0%
TOTAL 0 0%
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Report on the

Financial Statements
 Report of the auditor-general to the Eastern Cape 

Provincial Legislature on the Eastern Cape Socio 
Economic Consultative Council.

 introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Eastern 

Cape Socia Economic Consultative Council set out on 
pages 84 to 121, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement 
of financial performance, statement of changes in 
net assets, cash flow statement and statement of 
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the 
year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

 accounting authority’s responsibility 
for the financial statements

2. The board of directors, which constitutes the 
accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with the South African Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act 
No, 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as 
the accounting authority determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

 auditor-general’s responsibility
3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

 opinion
6.  In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 

in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council as at 
31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA 
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

 report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements

7.  In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general 
notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility 
to report findings on the reported performance 
information against predetermined objectives of 
selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, compliance with legislation and 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to 
identify reportable findings as described under each 
subheading but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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 predetermined objectives
8.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information of the following selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report of the 
public entity for the year ended 31 March 2016:

•  Programme 1 b: Operations, Finance, Corporate 
services and Knowledge Management on pages 29-30

•  Programme 2: Economic Governance on pages 33-34 
•  Programme 3: Infrastructure Governance on page 37 
•  Programme 5: Human Resources Development on 

page 45 
•  Programme 6: HIV/AIDS on pages 49-50

9.  I evaluated the usefulness of the reported 
performance information to determine whether 
it was presented in accordance with the National 
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether 
the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned programmes. I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were well 
defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 
Framework for managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI).

10. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete.

11. I did not identify any material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following programmes:

•  Programme 1b: Operations, Finance, Corporate 
services and Knowledge Management on pages 29-30 

•  Programme 2: Economic Governance on pages 33-34
•  Programme 3: Infrastructure Governance on page 37
•  Programme 5: Human Resources Development on 

page 45
•  Programme 6: HIV/AIDS on pages 49-50

 

 additional matters
12. Although I identified no material findings on the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected programmes, I draw 
attention to the following matters:

 achievement of planned targets
13. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 23 to 

24 for information on the achievement of the planned 
targets for the year.

 Compliance with legislation
14. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the 

public entity had complied with applicable legislation 
regarding financial matters, financial management and 
other related matters. I did not identify any instances 
of material non-compliance with specific matters in key 
legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in 
terms of the PAA.

 internal control
15. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of 

the financial statements, annual performance report 
and compliance with legislation; I did not identify any 
significant deficiencies in internal control.

AUDITOR GENERAL
29 JULY 2016
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Statement of

Financial Position
Figures in Rand note(s) 2016 2015 

Assets

Current Assets
Receivables from exchange transactions 3 33 863 94 618
Prepayments 4 628 691 1 042 606
Cash and cash equivalents 5 4 711 988 4 959 510

5 374 542 6 096 734
non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 1 524 379 1 396 209
Intangible assets 7 169 079 227 843
Other financial assets 8 147 185 168 417
Rental deposit 9 330 659 330 659

2 171 302 2 123 128
total Assets 7 545 844 8 219 862

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 10 93 697 74 444
Payables from exchange transactions 11 1 892 539 3 109 808
Payables from non exchange transactions 12 3 973 019 3 188 443
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 13 734 981 -
Provisions 14 - 1 285 670

6 694 236 7 658 365
non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 10 118 575 212 272
Operating lease liability 15 428 785 121 180

547 360 333 452

total Liabilities 7 241 596 7 991 817
net Assets 304 248 228 045
Accumulated surplus 304 248 228 045
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Statement of

Financial Performance
Figures in Rand note(s) 2016 2015 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 16 42 690 712 47 781 927
Other income 17 5 055 9 295
Operating expenses (42 857 958) (47 872 985)

operating (deficit) 18 (162 191) (81 763)
Investment revenue 19 294 513 406 223
Fair value adjustments (21 232) 44 764
Finance costs 20 (34 887) (10 190)
Surplus for the year 76 203 359 034
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Statement of

Changes in net Assets
Figures in Rand (thousand) Accumulated

surplus (deficit)
Total net

assets

Opening balance as previously reported (278 640) (278 640)
Adjustments
Correction of errors 147 651 147 651

Balance at 01 April 2014 as restated (130 989) (130 989)

Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 359 034 359 034
Total changes 359 034 359 034

Balance at 01 April 2015 as restated 228 045 228 045

Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 76 203 76 203
Total changes 76 203 76 203

Balance at 31 March 2016 304 248 304 248
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Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand (thousand) note(s) 2016 2015

cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Grants 44 679 288 48 908 000
Interest income 290 038 402 113
Dividends received 4 475 4 110

44 973 801 49 314 223
Payments
Employee costs (30 746 389) (30 140 005)
Suppliers (13 831 294) (16 683 334)
Finance costs (34 887) (10 190)

(44 612 570) (46 833 529)
net cash flows from operating activities 21 361 231 2 480 694

cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (527 896) (606 204)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6 15 897 47 918
Purchase of other intangible assets 7 (22 311) (243 276)
Payment of deposits - (330 659)
net cash flows from investing activities (534 310) (1 132 221)

cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease obligation (74 443) 188 875

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (247 522) 1 537 348

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4 959 510 3 422 162
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 4 711 988 4 959 510
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Statement of

Comparison of Budget and 
Actual Amounts

Figures in Rand 

Budget on Cash Basis

note(s) Approved
budget

Adjustments Final budget Actual amounts on 
comparable basis

Difference between 
final budget and 

Actual

Statement of Financial performance
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Interest received 1 165 000 - 165 000 290 038 125 038
Insurance proceeds - - - 5 055 5 055
Dividends received - - - 4 475 4 475
total revenue from exchange transactions 165 000 - 165 000 299 568 134 568

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
transfer revenue
Government grants 2 41 736 000 2 000 000 43 736 000 44 679 289 943 289
total revenue 41 901 000 2 000 000 43 901 000 44 978 857 1 077 857

Expenditure

Personnel 3 (31 987 442) - (31 987 442) (32 188 117) (200 675)
General Expenses 4 (9 813 558) 100 000 (9 713 558) (9 801 296) (87 738)
Capital Expenditure 5 (100 000) (2 100 000) (2 200 000) (2 618 258) (418 258)
total expenditure (41 901 000) (2 000 000) (43 901 000) (44 607 671) (706 671)
operating surplus - - - 371 186 371 186
Fair value adjustments - - - (21 232) (21 232)
Surplus before taxation - - - 349 954 349 954
Actual Amount on Comparable Basis as presented 
in the Budget and Actual Comparative Statement - - - 349 954 349 954

Reconciliation

Basis difference

Grant movements and insurance proceeds (1 988 577)
Cost of employees 1 441 728
General expenses (1 875 200)
Commitments - capital 2 068 051
Capital expenditure 550 207
Depreciation and amortization (469 960)
Actual Amount in the Statement of  Financial performance 76 203
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Statement of

Comparison of Budget and 
Actual Amounts

Figures in Rand 

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts on 
comparable basis

Difference between 
final budget and 

actual

1. The higher actual interest amount than the budgeted is due to a higher than anticipated interest rate and management of cash flows. 

2. The higher grant monies received is due to monies received for work performed at Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality and GIZ grant.

3. Overspending due to higher than budgeted performance bonus paid and has been funded from own revenue.

4. The slight overspending in general expenses is funded from own revenue.

5. Overspending in capital expenditure is due to the infrustructure upgrade that was necessary for business continuity. This has been funded from 
own revenue.
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Accounting Policies
1. pRESEntAtion oF AnnuAL FinAnCiAL StAtEMEntS

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

The Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council (ECSECC) is an entity domiciled in South Africa. The address of ECSECC’s registered 
office is 12 Gloucester Road, Vincent, East London, 5201. ECSECC is involved in policy, planning and development facilitation support to 
provincial government and other stakeholders in the Eastern Cape. ECSECC is a Schedule 3C Public Entity as defined in the Public Finance 
Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 May 2016.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand, which is the entity’s 
functional currency.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern 
for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is 
inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual 
financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these 
estimates of provisions are included in note 14 - Provisions.

Motor vehicle residual value
The entity’s management determines the estimated residual value for the entity’s motor vehicle which affects the related depreciation charges. 

This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will amend the depreciation charge in the future should the estimated residual 
value change.

1.3 property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
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Accounting Policies
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of assets and 
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, 
it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value. 
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

item    Average useful life
Furniture and fixtures   6.67 - 15 years
Motor vehicles   5 - 10 years
Office equipment   6.67 - 15 years
Computer equipment   3 - 15 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. If the expectations 
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations 
differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or 
service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is 
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.4 intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either 

individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from 

the entity or from other rights and obligations.
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A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable assumptions 
that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at its fair 
value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the 
period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible 
assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other 
intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may 
be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
item    useful life
Computer software   3 - 5 years

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of 
another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured 
at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any 
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance 
account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial position.

Accounting Policies
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial 
assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when 
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest 
rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and 
similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties 
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), 
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar 
financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or 
the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full 
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction. 

A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:
 - receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
 - exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. 
An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
• instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
 - it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
 - on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of 
 a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;

 - non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at initial
 recognition; and

 - financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.

Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or 
in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents cost Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Deposits cost Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Shares  Financial asset measured at fair value

Accounting Policies
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The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or 
in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Financial liability measured at amortised cost Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
• Financial instruments at fair value.
• Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measurement considerations
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the entity establishes 
fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction price would have 
been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include 
using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of 
another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique 
commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates 
of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of 
market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in 
setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the 
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without 
modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or 
deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

1.6 prepayments

A prepaid expense is an expenditure paid for in one accounting period, but for which the underlying asset will not be consumed until a future 
period. When the asset is eventually consumed, it is charged to expense.

A prepaid expense is carried on the Statement of Financial Position of an organisation as a current asset until it is consumed. If a prepaid 
expense were likely to not be consumed within the next year, it would instead be classified on the Statement of Financial Position as a 
non-current asset. Once consumption has occurred, the prepaid expense is removed from the Statement of Financial Position and is instead 
reported in that period as an expense on the Statement of Financial Performance.

Accounting Policies
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1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an 
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement 
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is 
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published 
policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a 
result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
• wages, salaries and social security contributions;
• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences is due to be 

settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related employee service; and
• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the 

employees render the related service.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement 
or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting 
date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present 
obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
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1.9 provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting 
date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be 
required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is 
recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement 
is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision.

1.10 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, if both 
the following criteria are met:
• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or building maintenance 

services); and
• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary commitments relating to 

employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

Accounting Policies
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1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis 
over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific 
act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the 
extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is 
determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when:
• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and
• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the entity’s right to receive payment has been established.

Accounting Policies
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1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an increase 
in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives 
value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly 
receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a 
liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue 
equal to that reduction.

Grant funding
Revenue from non-exchange transactions is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

An unconditional grant is recognised in surplus or deficit as other income when the grant becomes receivable.

Other government grants are recognsed initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received 
and the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant, and are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic 
basis over the useful life of the asset.

As an entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from non-exchange transactions 
recognised as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognise an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction.

1.13 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
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1.14 irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or 
that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:
(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or before 
finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no 
further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited at 
year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to 
the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the register and 
the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National Treasury 
or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be 
attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover 
the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as 
debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated 
accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain 
against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in 
the irregular expenditure register.

1.15 Budget information

Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is given effect through 
authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance with the legally 
adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2015/04/01 to 2016/03/31.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the statement of 
financial performance and the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts.

Accounting Policies
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1.16 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African Government. As a 
consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere 
of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged with 
the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, 
that management in their dealings with the entity.

1.17 Changes in accounting policy, estimates and errors

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in estimates are 
disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, except to the 
extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the entity shall restate 
the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting policies that are affected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, 
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy. In 
such cases the entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective 
restatement is practicable.

1.18 impairment of non-cash generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an asset is 
deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of 
the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.

Accounting Policies
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notes
to the Annual Financial Statements

2. nEw StAndARdS And intERpREtAtionS

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that 
are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ interpretation:
GRAP 1:  (as revised in 2012): Presentation of Financial Statements
GRAP 2: (as revised in 2010): Cash Flow Statements
GRAP 3:  (as revised in 2012): Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GRAP 5:  (as revised in 2013): Borrowing costs
GRAP 9:  (as revised in 2012): Revenue from Exchange Transactions
GRAP 13:  (as revised in 2012): Leases
GRAP 14:  (as revised in 2010): Events After the Reporting Date
GRAP 17:  (as revised in 2012): Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19:  (as revised in 2010): Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
GRAP 21:  Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets
GRAP 23:  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
GRAP 24:  Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25:  Employee Benefit
GRAP 26:  Impairment of Cash-generating Assets
GRAP 31:  (as revised 2012): Intangible Assets (Replaces GRAP 102)
GRAP 104: Financial Instruments

2.2 Standards and interpretations early adopted
The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:

Standard/ interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact of
 Years beginning on or adoption and nature of
 after standards:
GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2016 The impact of the
  amendment is not material.

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2016 or later periods:

Standard/ interpretation: Expected impact of
 adoption and nature of
 standards:
GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor No significant impact
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables No significant impact



102    2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report

EASTERN CAPE SOCIO ECONOMIC CONSULTATIVE COUNCIL 
AnnUAL FInAnCIAL STATEMEnTS FOR THE yEAR EndEd 31 MARCH 2016

notes
to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand  2016 2015

3. RECEivABLES FRoM EXCHAnGE tRAnSACtionS

Sanlam Ltd 32 584 28 108

GIZ Fund 1 279 66 510
33 863 94 618

The amount of R 1 279 (2015:R 66 510) receivable from Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur International Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) relates to costs paid to 
an employee hired based on an agreement with them.

The amount of R 32 584 (2015:R 28 108) receivable from Sanlam Ltd relates to dividends receivable on shares held by ECSECC by virtue of 
the Sanlam demutualization. (Refer to note 8).

4. pREpAYMEntS

Atros Trust 188 775 174 792
CQS Technology 35 807 33 780
Anza Technology 125 409 87 021
Avusa Media 2 718 2 809
Go Daddy 1 313 -
Multichoice - 972
Metro Computers 89 461 81 328
Accsys 3 920 14 471
OLRAC SPS 12 726 -

Quantec 143 133 135 090

Pastel - 429

Postnet - 356

IODSA - 1 718

Evergreen 2 268 1 134

IHS Information - 137 484

Analytix 5 472 -

ITR Technology 5 587 3 245

PWC - 7 838

Red Alert 376 -

ESRI SA - 50 920

Business Women Association - 375

IORM - 1 339

Dimension Data - 179 837

Sage VIP 11 726 127 668
628 691 1 042 606
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Figures in Rand  2016 2015

5. CASH And CASH EquivALEntS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 2 000 1 009

Bank balances 4 709 988 4 958 501
4 711 988 4 959 510

Cash and cash equivalents have not been pledged as collateral.

6. pRopERtY, pLAnt And EquipMEnt

2016 2015

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying  
value

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value

Furniture and fittings 1 904 598 (1 441 704) 462 894 1 901 942 (1 362 055) 539 887

Motor vehicles 187 898 (35 988) 151 910 187 898 (18 148) 169 750

Office equipment 1 002 379 (474 298) 528 081 881 902 (522 105) 359 797

Computer equipment 1 596 655 (1 215 161) 381 494 1 391 237 (1 064 462) 326 775

total 4 691 530 (3 167 151) 1 524 379 4 362 979 (2 966 770) 1 396 209

Reconciliation of property, plant and 
equipment - 2016

Opening balance Additions Disposals Change in
estimate

Depreciation Total

Furniture and fittings 539 887   3 893 - 133 616 (214 502) 462 894

Motor vehicles 169 750 - - - (17 840) 151 910

Office equipment 359 797 292 622 - 24 108 (148 446) 528 081

Computer equipment 326 775 231 381 (10 842) 70 956 (236 776) 381 494
1 396 209 527 896 (10 842) 228 680 (617 564) 1 524 379

Reconciliation of 
property, plant and 
equipment - 2015

Opening balance Additions Disposals Change in
estimate

Correction of
prior period

error

Depreciation Total

Furniture and fittings 543 589 244 972 (27 449) 383 6 737 (228 345) 539 887

Motor vehicles 187 589 - - - (17 839) 169 750

Office equipment 206 740  300 165 (131) 133 2 512 (149 622) 359 797

Computer equipment 494 286  61 067 (11 823) 19 190 24 125 (260 070) 326 775
1 432 204 606 204 (39 403) 19 706 33 374 (655 876) 1 396 209
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Figures in Rand  2016 2015

pledged as security
ECSECC has not pledged any of its property, plant and equipment as security

Assets subject to finance lease (net carrying amount)

Borrowing costs capitalised in this period
Office equipment 183 180 278 752

The average lease term was 3 years, refer to note 10: Finance leases.

7. intAnGiBLE ASSEtS

2016 2015

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying  
value

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying  
value

Computer software 342 012 (172 933) 169 079 368 804 (140 961) 227 843

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016
opening 
balance

Additions change in
estimate

Amortisation total

Computer software 227 843 22 311 1 513 (82 588) 169 079

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
opening 
balance

ADDitioNs Amortisation total

Computer software 29 022 243 276 (44 455) 227 843

pledged as security
ECSECC has not pledged any of its intangible assets as security.



2015 / 2016 ECSECC Annual Report    105

EASTERN CAPE SOCIO ECONOMIC CONSULTATIVE COUNCIL 
AnnUAL FInAnCIAL STATEMEnTS FOR THE yEAR EndEd 31 MARCH 2016

notes
to the Annual Financial Statements

9. REntAL dEpoSit

Atros Trust 330 659 330 659

The deposit amounting to R330 659 (2015: R330 659) paid to Atros Trust in 2015 as per the requirements of the office accommodation lease agreement.

Figures in Rand  2016 2015

8. otHER FinAnCiAL ASSEtS

designated at fair value
Listed shares

2 149 shares are held in Sanlam Ltd and are valued at fair value based on the share
price traded in an active market.

147 185 168 417

non-current assets
Designated at fair value 147 185 168 417

Financial assets at fair value
Fair values of financial assets measured or disclosed at fair value

Sanlam Shares 147 185 168 417

Sanlam demutualized in 1998 and all policy holders were issued free shares. These shares were issued to ECSECC by virtue of the policies held 
and were not purchased or applied for.

The shares are traded in an active market and the fair value was determined using the share price at 31 March.
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Figures in Rand  2016 2015

10. FinAnCE LEASE oBLiGAtion

Minimum lease payments due
within one year 119 269 109 330

in second to fifth year inclusive 129 209 248 478
248 478 357 808

less: future finance charges (36 206) (71 092)

present value of minimum lease payments 212 272 286 716

present value of minimum lease payments due
within one year 93 697 74 444

in second to fifth year inclusive 118 575 212 272
212 272 286 716

Non-current liabilities 118 575 212 272

Current liabilities 93 697 74 444
212 272 286 716

The average lease term was 3 years, and the average effective borrowing rate was 1.25% (2015: 1.25%).
There is no contingent rental payable on the leasing arrangements.
No restrictions are imposed by the lease arrangements.

11. pAYABLES FRoM EXCHAnGE tRAnSACtionS

Trade payables 521 398 1 522 380
Accrued leave pay 1 153 570 1 338 741
Employee bonus saving accrual 217 571 248 687

1 892 539 3 109 808

12. pAYABLES FRoM non EXCHAnGE tRAnSACtionS

Refunds arising from non-exchange revenue/Funds to be surrendered 3 973 019 3 188 443

Refund arising from non-exchange revenue relates to surplus recognised as a payable, refer to note 32.
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13. unSpEnt ConditionAL GRAntS And RECEiptS

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts: GIZ 734 981 -

The Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur International Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) has allocated funds to ECSECC for the carrying out of specific objectives by 
the Eastern Cape Aids Council (ECAC). On furfilment of these conditions, the liability will be recognised in income as the expenses are incurred 
against the grant.

14. pRoviSionS

Reconciliation of provisions 
2016

Opening balance Utilised  
during the year

Prior year under 
provision

Total

Performance bonus 1 285 670 (1 421 704) 136 034 -

Reconciliation of provisions 
2015

Opening balance Additions Utilised  
during the year

Reversed during 
the year

Prior year under 
provision

Total

Compensation commissioner 3 004 - - (3 004) - -

Performance bonus 1 100 506 1 285 670 (1 282 127)  - 181 621 1 285 670
1 103 510 1 285 670 (1 282 127) (3 004) 181 621 1 285 670

The provision for performance bonus relates to bonus to be paid out to employees depending on each employees’ and the entity’s performance at 
each year end.

This amount is categorised as a provision due to uncertainity about the performance rating of the employees at year end, as the assessments are 
normally done after year end and the uncertainity about the performance of the entity due to unavailability of audited annual financial statements 
at the time of preparing the annual financial statements.

The compensation commissioner provision relates to amounts payable to the compensation fund administered by the Department of Labour for 
claims relating to employees injured on duty.
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Figures in Rand 2016 2015

15. opERAtinG LEASE LiABiLitY

Non-current liabilities 428 785 121 180

The Entity has entered into an operating lease for operating premises. Leased property remain with the lessor throughout the lease term and 
upon the expiration of the lease agreement.

16. REvEnuE FRoM non-EXCHAnGE tRAnSACtionS

Office of The Premier 41 747 424 47 781 927

GIZ conditional grant 63 288 -

NMBMM 880 000 -
42 690 712 47 781 927

office of the premier
In terms of the Service Level Agreement between ECSECC and OTP, this grant is used to fund the core functions of the organisation.

Grants received 43 736 000 48 908 000

Funds to be surrendered movement (1 988 576) (1 126 073)
41 747 424 47 781 927

17. otHER inCoME

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 055 8 516

Other income - 779
5 055 9 295

EASTERN CAPE SOCIO ECONOMIC CONSULTATIVE COUNCIL 
AnnUAL FInAnCIAL STATEMEnTS FOR THE yEAR EndEd 31 MARCH 2016
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Figures in Rand 2016 2015

18. opERAtinG dEFiCit

Operating deficit for the year is stated after accounting for 
the following:
directors' remuneration
for executive services rendered 2 648 896 2 328 532
for non-executive services rendered 565 638 550 387

3 214 534 2 878 919

operating lease charges
premises
Rental on straight line basis 2 461 038 2 396 607

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 5, 055 8 516

Amortisation on intangible assets 81 076 44 455

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 388 884 602 801

Employee costs 30 746 389 30 140 005

Repairs and maintenance 27 904 21 718

19. invEStMEnt REvEnuE

dividend revenue
Listed financial assets - Local 4 475 4 110

interest revenue
Bank 290 038 402 113

294 513 406 223

20. FinAnCE CoStS

Finance lease 34 887 10 190

EASTERN CAPE SOCIO ECONOMIC CONSULTATIVE COUNCIL 
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Figures in Rand 2016 2015

21. CASH GEnERAtEd FRoM (uSEd in) opERAtionS

Surplus 76 203 359 034
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 469 960 647 256

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities (5 055) (8 516)

Fair value adjustments 21 232 (44,764)

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 307 605 1 772

Movements in provisions (1 285 670) 182 160

Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions 60 755 6 650

Prepayments 413 915 (244 025)

Payables from exchange transactions (1 217 271) 455 054

Payables from non exchange transactions 784 576 1 126 073

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 734 981 -
361 231 2 480 694
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22. FinAnCiAL inStRuMEntS diSCLoSuRE

Categories of financial instruments

2016 
Financial assets

Fair value through 
surplus or deficit

total

Receivables from exchange transactions 33 863 33 863
Cash and cash equivalents 4 711 988 4 711 988
Deposit 330 659 330 659
Other financial assets 147 185 147 185

5 223 695 5 223 695

Financial liabilities
At amortised

cost
Total

Payables from exchange transactions 1 892 539 1 892 539
Payables from non-exchange transactions 3 973 019 3 973 019

5 865 558 5 865 558

2015 
Financial assets

Fair value through 
surplus or deficit

Total

Receivables from exchange transactions 94 618 94 618
Cash and cash equivalents 4 959 510 4 959 510
Deposit 330 659 330 659
Other financial assets 168 417 168 417

5 553 204 5 553 204

Financial liabilities
At amortised

cost
Total

Payables from exchange transactions 3 109 808 3 109 808
Payables from non-exchange transactions 3 188 443 3 188 443

6 298 251 6 298 251
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23.GEnERAL EXpEnSES

Advertising 62 490 146 267
Auditors remuneration 977 297 1 476 043
Bank charges 21 146 19 749

Cleaning 99 128 80 183

Computer expenses 117 232 188 413

Consulting and professional fees 1 972 302 3 196 743

Hire 79 025 104 630

Insurance 75 953 79 414

Lease rentals on operating lease 2 461 038 2 396 607

Postage and courier 1 635 3 604

Printing and stationery 107 703 120 570

Security 253 206 271 701

Subscriptions and membership fees 833 672 695 611

Telephone and fax 664 432 584 327

Travel 2 377 429 4 588 698

Electricity 210 422 295 020

General expenses 37 773 40 369

Publications 696 184 2 225 676

Board fees 565 638 550 387
11 613 705 17 064 012

24. EMpLoYEE RELAtEd CoStS

Basic 18 761 411 17 201 342
Performance bonus - 1 467 477
Medical aid 435 480 399 811

UIF 161 289 163 084

PAYE 8 031 105 7 523 112

Staff cell costs 30 796 26 451

Retirement annuity fund 860 890 789 843

Group life insurance 716 247 556 423

13th Cheques 1 374 594 1 438 955

Compensation commissioner 38 785 42 793

Garnishes 48 800 36 650

Staff training 286 992 494 064
30 746 389 30 140 005
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25. AuditoRS' REMunERAtion

Fees 977 297 1 476 043

26. CoMMitMEntS

operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
within one year 2 325 708 2 153 433
in second to fifth year inclusive 7 126 886 9 452 594

9 452 594 11 606 027
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for its office properties. 
Leases are negotiated for an average term of five years. No contingent rent is payable.

Committed expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
Professional fees 89 000 1 388 124
Stationery 1 311 -
Insurance 78 402 -
Publications 6 384 229 527
Travel and workshop - 21, 417
General 33 700 -
Computer Equipment 2 270 199 -

2 478 996 1 639 068

27. ContinGEnCiES

The entity has no contingent liabilities at period end.

28. RELAtEd pARtiES

Relationships
Government department - Controlling department: Office of The Premier
Local government:     Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality (NMBMM)

Related party balances

Related party transactions
Government Grant
Office of The Premier 43,736,000 48,908,000
NMBMM 880,000 -
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29. MEMBER'S And pRESCRiBEd oFFiCER'S EMoLuMEntS

Executive
2016

Basic salary Allowances Bonuses Total

Andrew Murray 1 416 813 18 000 77 745 1 512 558

Andisa Zinja 1 075 003 9 000 52 335 1 136 338
2 491 816 27 000 130 080 2 648 896

Executive
2015

Basic salary Allowances Bonuses Total

Andrew Murray 1 305 717 18 000 73 138 1 396 855

Andisa Zinja 873 443 9 000 49 234 931 677
2 179 160 27 000 122 372 2 328 532

Service contracts
The executive directors are subject to written employment agreements. The employment agreements regulate duties, remuneration, 
allowances, restraints, leave and notice periods of these executives. None of these service contracts exceed 5 years.

Andrew Murray: 1 May 2014 - 30 April 2019.
Service period: 5 years. Remaining - 3 years and 1 month.

Andisa Zinja: 01 July 2015 - 30 June 2020.
Service period: 5 years. Remaining - 4 years and 3 months.

non-executive
2016

Members' fees Total

G. Mpumza (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 30 829 30 829

K. Hustler (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 26 240 26 240

Z. Tini (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 63 458 63 458

T. Toyis (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 13 136 13 136

D. Classen (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 59 948 59 948

P. Ndendela (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 55 386 55 386

R. Moodley (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 68 829 68 829

L. Holbrook (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 45 600 45 600

S. Mabizela (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 15 200 15 200

K. Meth (Re-appointed 27 August 2015) 18 012 18 012
396 638 396 638
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non-executive
2015

Members' fees Total

G. Mpumza (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 30 822 30 822

K. Hustler (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 31 763 31 763

Z. Tini (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 54 200 54 200

T. Toyis (Appointed 28 August 2014) 14 160 14 160

D. Classen (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 63 835 63 835

P. Ndendela (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 50 950 50 950

N. Kontsiwe (Resigned 28 August 2014) 7 600 7 600

R. Moodley (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 61 222 61 222

L. Holbrook (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 38 429 38 429

D. Dyasop (Appointed 28 August 2014) 30 400 30 400

T. Mayekiso (Re-ppointed 28 August 2014) 7 600 7 600

M. Rayi (Resigned 28 August 2014) 11 800 11 800

S. Mabizela (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 3 800 3 800

K. Meth (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 5 206 5 206
411 787 411 787

Audit Committee
2016

Members' fees Total

N. Mnconywa (Chairperson) 35 200 35 200

G. Bana 22 800 22 800

R. Hill 22 800 22 800

L. Steele 15 200 15 200
96 000 96 000

Audit Committee
2015

Members' fees Total

N. Mnconywa (Chairperson) 31 400 31 400

G. Bana 19 000 19 000

R. Hill 19 000 19 000

L. Steele 19 000 19 000
88 400 88 400
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Risk Committee
2016

Members' fees Total

G. Bana (Chairperson) 27 400 27 400

C. Sparg 19 000 19 000

N. Hlongwane 19 000 19 000

Z. Ngcwabe 7 600 7 600
73 000 73 000

Risk Committee
2015

Members' fees Total

G. Bana (Chairperson) 19 800 19 800

C. Sparg 15 200 15 200

N. Hlongwane 15 200 15 200
50 200 50 200

Key Management personnel
2016

Position Service period Basic salary Allowances Total

N. Mbovane Corporate Services Manager 1 April 2015 -
31 March 2016

1 003 881 9 000 1 012 881

T. Qholosha Social Mobilisation PM 1 April 2015 -
30 June 2015

218 231 2 250 220 481

V. Dayile HIV/AIDS PM 1 April 2015 -
31 March 2016

1 035 604 9 000 1 044 604

L. Jack Chief Operations Officer 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

1 068 303 9 000 1 077 303

B. Mhlaba Strategic Governance PM 1 April 2015 -
31 March 2016

1 242 283 9 000 1 251 283

S. Hesjedal Knowledge and Information PM 1 April 2015 -
31 March 2016

978 164 9 000 987 164

L. Mosana HRD and Economic
Governance PM

1 July 2015 -
31 March 2016

889 298 6 750 896 048

6 435 764 54 000 6 489 764
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Key Management personnel
2015

Position Service period Basic salary Allowances Total

N. Mbovane Corporate Services Manager 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

913 108 9 000 922 108

M. Sycholt Policy Research and
Information PM

1 April 2014 -
31 August 2014

487 631 3 750 491 381

T. Qholosha Social Mobilisation PM 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

849 657 9 000 858 657

V. Dayile HIV/AIDS PM 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

965 994 9 000 974 994

L. Jack Chief Operations Officer 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

982 603 9 000 991 603

B. Mhlaba Strategic Governance PM 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

1 147 079 9 000 1 156 079

S. Hesjedal Knowledge and Information PM 1 April 2014 - 
31 March 2015

913 041 9 000 922 041

M. Mwelase Acting CFO 19 May 2014 -
19 November
2014

302 574 3 000 305 574

R. Grinker Acting Economic Governance
PM

1 April 2014 -
30 September
2014

492 801 4 500 497 301

M. Lewis Acting Economic Governance 
PM

1 October 2014
- 31 March 2015

546 133 4 500 550 633

7 600 621 69 750 7 670 371

Key management personnel are subject to written employment agreements. The employment agreements 
regulate duties, remuneration, allowances, restraints, leave and notice periods of these executives. None of 
these service contracts exceed 5 years.

Summary
Executive Directors 2 648 896 2 328 532
Key Management Personnel 6 489 764 7 670 371
Other Employees 21 607 729 20 141 102

30 746 389 30 140 005
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30. RiSK MAnAGEMEnt

Capital risk management

The entity is soley dependant on the grant from the Office of the Premier.

Liquidity risk
The entity receives a grant from the Office of the Premier. All accruals and commitments in the 2015- 2016 financial year were accounted for on 
the grant received for the same financial year, therefore the entity will meet its expected financial commitments. On going review of cash froms 
are done to ensure that payments and accruals do not exceed grant received.

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality 
credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Receivables from exchange transactions relate to amounts receivable from the Office of The Premier, Sanlam Ltd and Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur 
International Zusammenarbeit (GIZ). Management evaluated credit risk relating to debtors on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently rated, 
these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its 
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set 
by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

interest rate risk
At 31 March 2016, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, 
surplus for the year would have been R 2,123 (2015: R 2,768) lower/higher.

Method used - Sensitivity analysis is based on the interest charged on borrowings by financial institutions.  
There were no significant changes from the previous period method used.  

31. iRREGuLAR EXpEndituRE

Opening balance - 723 116
Less: Amounts condoned - (723 116)

- -

Irregular expenditure was identified during the previous financial years relating to expenditure incurred for the years ended 2010 and 2011. 
This expenditure was written-off by the board of directors during the prior period.
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32. REFundS ARiSinG FRoM non-EXCHAnGE REvEnuE

Funds to be surrendered
Cash and cash equivalents 4 711 988 4 959 510

Less: ECSECC accruals (521 398) (1 522 380)

Less: Thirteenth cheque accrual (217 571) (248 687)
3 973 019 3 188 443

In terms of section 53 of PFMA, ECSECC as a Public Entity may not accumulate surpluses unless the prior written approval of the 
Provincial Treasury has been obtained.

33. CHAnGE in EStiMAtE

Management revised the estimated useful lives of some of its property, plant and equipment due the increased anticipated years of use. 
The effect of the revision has decreased the depreciation charge for the current and future periods by:

Computer equipment 70 956 19 190
Office equipment 24 108 133
Furniture and fittings 133 616 383
Intangible assets 1 513 -

230 193 19 706
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34. pRioR pERiod ERRoRS

During the 2015 financial year some assets were fully depreciated. It was however noted that some of those assets were still in use for 2016 
and that the useful lives should have been reassessed during 2015.

Sanlam demutualized in 1998 and all policy holders were issued free shares. ECSECC has recently been contacted by Sanlam and informed that 
shares are held in the name of ECSECC and dividends are due to the entity as part of the demutualization process. These shares were issued to 
ECSECC by virtue of the policies held and were not purchased or applied for. The current office bearers were not aware of this and as such the 
shares and dividends have previously never been included in the records of ECSECC.

the correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
Property, plant and equipment - 33 374

Other financial assets - 168 417

Receivables - 28 108

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit - (147 651)

Statement of Financial performance
Depreciation expense - (33 374)

Fair value adjustment - (44 764)

Dividends declared / Investment revenue - (4 110)

Cash flow statement

Cash flow from operating activities
Dividends received - 4 110

Suppliers - (4 110)
- -
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r’000

2015 
r’000

REvEnuE

Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income 17 - 779
Interest received - investment 19 290 038 402 113
Dividends received 19 4 475 4 110
total revenue from exchange transactions 294 513 407 002

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 16 42 690 712 47 781 927

total revenue 42 985 225 48 188 929

EXpEndituRE

Employee related costs 24 (30 746 389) (30 140 005)

Depreciation and amortisation (469,960) (647 256)

Finance costs 20 (34,887) (10 190)

Lease rentals on operating lease (2 461 038) (2 396 607)

Repairs and maintenance (27 904) (21 718)

General Expenses 23 (9 152 667) (14 667 399)

total expenditure (42 892 845) (47 883 175)

operating surplus 18 92 380 305 754

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities 5 055 8 516

Fair value adjustments (21 232) 44 764

Surplus for the year 76 203 359 034
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